
Page 1 of 3 
 

 

NOTICE OF REGULAR 
ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION MEETING 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, 
WILL MEET IN REGULAR SESSION OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS FOLLOWS:   

 

Call to order. 
 
Statement of rules pertaining to audience comments. 
 
Comments from the audience. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A.  Consideration of and action on the Regular Rosenberg Development Corporation Meeting 
Minutes for February 12, 2015. (Cynthia Sullivan, Secretary II) 
 

B.  Consideration of and action on the monthly Rosenberg Development Corporation Financial 
Reports for the period ending February 28, 2015. (Joyce Vasut, Executive Director of 
Administrative Services) 
 

C.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. RDC-92, a Resolution amending the 
authorized representatives of the Rosenberg Development Corporation in the Texas Local 
Government Investment Pool (TexPool) account. (Joyce Vasut, Executive Director of 
Administrative Services)  

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Hold Executive Session to receive legal advice from the City Attorney concerning 

contemplated litigation, namely dispute with Imperial Performing Arts, Inc., pursuant to 
Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code; to deliberate the potential purchase, 
exchange, lease, or value of real property pursuant to Texas Government Code Section 
551.072; and, for deliberations regarding economic development negotiations pursuant to 
Section 551.087 of the Texas Government Code. 

 
2. Adjourn Executive Session, reconvene Regular Session, and take action as necessary as a 

result of Executive Session. 
 
3. Consideration of and action on an Agreement for Transportation Service by and between 

Rosenberg Development Corporation and Fort Bend County for bus services in Rosenberg. 
(Randall Malik, Rosenberg Development Corporation Executive Director) 

 
 
 

DATE:  Thursday, March 12, 2015 
 

       TIME:  4:00 p.m. 
 

PLACE:  Rosenberg Civic Center 
3825 Highway 36 South 
Rosenberg, Texas 77471 
 

PURPOSE:
  

Regular Rosenberg Development Corporation Meeting 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 

4. Review and discuss Section 551.041 of the Texas Open Meetings Act – Notice of Meeting 
Required as it relates to departmental reports being removed from meeting agendas and 
take action as necessary. (Randall Malik, Rosenberg Development Corporation Executive 
Director) 

 
5. Consideration of and action on draft Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the 

Rosenberg Development Corporation for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2014, submitted 
by Pattillo, Brown and Hill, L.L.P. (Joyce Vasut, Executive Director of Administrative 
Services) 

 
6. Review and discuss the update of City newsletter, and take action as necessary. (Angela E. 

Fritz, Executive Director Information Services) 
 

7. Review and discuss the infrastructure branding, and take action as necessary. (Angela E. 
Fritz, Executive Director Information Services) 

 
8. Review and discuss Old Richmond Road and Jennetta Street Reconstruction, and take 

action as necessary. (John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services) 
 

9. Review and discuss City Sidewalk Plan Update, and take action as necessary. (Randall 
Malik, Rosenberg Development Corporation Executive Director) 

 
10. Review and discuss long term options for Economic Development office space, and direct 

staff as necessary. (Bill Knesek, Rosenberg Development Corporation Board President) 
 

11. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. RDC-93, a Resolution of the Board of 
Directors of the Rosenberg Development Corporation, in support of Texas House Bill  
No. 658 relating to the creation of a campus of the Texas State Technical College System in 
Fort Bend County. (Randall Malik, Rosenberg Development Corporation Executive Director) 

 
12. Review and discuss requests for future agenda items, and take action as necessary. 
 
13. Announcements. 
 
14. Adjournment. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

{EXECUTION PAGE TO FOLLOW} 



Page 3 of 3 
 

 

DATED AND POSTED this the ______ day of ______________________, 2015, at ______________ m.  
 
by ________________________________________________. 

 
 

Attest: 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________        
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary 

 
 

Approved for posting: 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________ 
Randall Malik, Executive Director 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reasonable accommodation for the disabled attending this meeting will be 
available; persons with disabilities in need of special assistance at the meeting 
should contact the City Secretary at (832) 595-3340.   



ITEM A 
 

Minutes: 
 

1. Regular Rosenberg Development Corporation Meeting 
Minutes – February 12, 2015 

 
 



 

 
PAGE 1 of 4 * ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION MEETING MINUTES * 

February 12, 2015 
*** DRAFT *** 

 
 

ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
On this the 12th day of February 2015, the Rosenberg Development Corporation (RDC) of the City of Rosenberg, Fort 
Bend County, Texas, met in Regular Session, at the Rosenberg Civic Center, 3825 SH 36S, Rosenberg, Texas. 
 
PRESENT 
Teresa Bailey  Secretary, Rosenberg Development Corporation 
Amanda J. Barta  Director, Rosenberg Development Corporation 
Ted Garcia   Treasurer, Rosenberg Development Corporation 
Bill Knesek   President, Rosenberg Development Corporation 
Cynthia McConathy  Director, Rosenberg Development Corporation 
Jimmie J. Peña  Director, Rosenberg Development Corporation 
Allen Scopel   Vice President, Rosenberg Development Corporation 

         
STAFF PRESENT 
Jeremy Heath Assistant Economic Development Director 
Darren McCarthy Parks and Recreation Director 
Randall D. Malik Executive Director, Rosenberg Development Corporation 
Cynthia Sullivan Secretary II 
Travis Tanner Executive Director of Community Development 
Joyce Vasut Executive Director of Administrative Services 
 
GUESTS 
Randy Wooten Vice Chancellor, Texas State Technical College 
John Kennedy Director of Development, Fort Bend County, Texas State Technical College 

        
CALL TO ORDER. 
President Knesek called the meeting to order at 4:05 p.m.  
 
STATEMENT OF RULES PERTAINING TO AUDIENCE COMMENTS.
Cynthia Sullivan, Secretary II, read the statement of rules pertaining to audience comments. 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE.  
There were no comments from the audience. 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
    A. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON THE REGULAR ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

MEETING MINUTES FOR JANUARY 08, 2015.  
 

    B.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON THE MONTHLY ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JANUARY 31, 2015 AND THE QUARTERLY INVESTMENT 
REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2014. 
Executive Summary: The January 31, 2015 RDC Financial Reports are attached for your review and consideration.  
Staff recommends approval. 
 

 President Knesek requested that Consent Agenda Item B be placed on the Regular Agenda as Item 1A. 
 
Action: Director McConathy moved, and Director Bailey seconded to approve Consent Agenda Item A.   The motion 
carried by a vote of six “ayes” and one abstention.  President Knesek abstained because he was absent from the 
January meeting. 
 

                                                           REGULAR AGENDA
 

1A. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON THE MONTHLY ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JANUARY 31, 2015 AND THE QUARTERLY INVESTMENT 
REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2014. 
 
Key discussion points: 

 President Knesek requested that specific item titles on the budget classification be corrected so the Financial Report 
matches the RDC Budget item titles. Joyce Vasut confirmed she could have those item titles corrected to match the 



 

 
PAGE 2 of 4 * ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION MEETING MINUTES * 

February 12, 2015 
*** DRAFT *** 

Budget item titles. 
 President Knesek asked about the City charging RDC for professional services in the amount of $2,600 for the 

Business Park Development. Ms. Vasut explained the City is charging RDC actual costs for professional services and 
is not charging RDC 5% as has been charged previously. She also confirmed that professional services were not 
included in the total cost of the project. 

 President Knesek asked about the reduction of General Funds in the third quarter. Ms. Vasut replied that the RDC 
funded $1.7 million for the City to fund the Rosenberg Business Park project. 

 President Knesek also pointed out the low interest rate on RDC funds in Texpool. Ms. Vasut reported that Texpool is 
flexible about moving funds in and out of that account. 
 

Action: Director McConathy moved and Director Scopel seconded a motion to approve the Financial Reports for the 
period ending January 31, 2015, and the quarterly Investment Report for the period ending December 31, 2014, as 
presented. The motion passed by a unanimous vote. 
 

1.  (This item was taken out of order after Item No. 6) 
REVIEW AND DISCUSS CITY SIDEWALK PLAN, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY.  

Executive Summary:  This agenda item was requested by the RDC Board at the January RDC Meeting. The RDC Board 
requested that staff update the map to provide anticipated cost figures of each proposed sidewalk segment. The RDC does not 
have funds budgeted for the sidewalk project in the Fiscal Year 15 Budget.   

Key discussion points: 
 Mr. Tanner reported on the dollar amounts for the segments of sidewalk that could benefit commercial 

development and major commercial centers. 
Questions/Answers: 

 President Knesek inquired about specific areas highlighted and if funds for sidewalks had been included in the 
Fiscal Year 2015 Budget. 

 Mr. Malik confirmed no funds were budgeted for sidewalks in Fiscal Year 2015. 
 President Knesek stated that he appreciates the work completed on sidewalk project and indicated sidewalk 

project would be discussed in the RDC’s Fiscal Year 2016 Budget process. 
 Mr. Tanner stated that he would calculate those specific areas for commercial development. 
 Director McConathy suggested a focus on the older Rosenberg area sidewalks because new development is 

required to provide sidewalks. 
 Director Barta pointed out there are children walking to schools that do not have sidewalks. 
 Mr. Tanner replied that he would look at the City’s plan for sidewalks in the areas that include schools. 

 
No action was taken. 
 

2.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON INSTALLING TREE GRATES IN DOWNTOWN ROSENBERG. 
 
Executive Summary: This item has been requested by Darren McCarthy, Rosenberg Parks and Recreation Director, as an 
opportunity for the Rosenberg Development Corporation to partner with the City of Rosenberg in installing tree grates in 
Downtown Rosenberg and to take action as necessary. A local company, Kelly’s Welding, could construct the grates at a cost 
of $270.00 each. Installation is approximately $300.00 each for a total cost to complete the project at $8,000.00. The RDC 
Projects Fund currently has $15,888 remaining dollars in the FY 2014 Park Improvements Line Item. 
 
Key discussion points: 

 Mr. McCarthy explained the placement of tree grates in downtown Rosenberg. He also reported the rose 
bushes will be replaced with the type of trees that are planted in that area. He added that ADA requires a curb 
around the trees for sight impaired citizens.  

Questions/Answers: 
 President Knesek asked if the City would partner with RDC for this project. The $8,000 could be funded by 

RDC and the City each funding $4,000. 
 Mr. McCarthy reported there was $15,888 remaining for this project in the Fiscal Year 2014 Budget. 
 Director Pena agreed the City could partner with this project. 
 Director McConathy asked about the types of trees being planted and if the root system be deep enough.  Mr. 

McCarthy affirmed the types of trees have a deep root system.  
 

Action: Director McConathy moved and Director Barta seconded a motion to approve funding in the amount of $4,000 
for the purchase of seven (7) tree grates, half the recommended number, from Kelly’s Welding Service to be placed in 
Downtown Rosenberg. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

3.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. RDC-91, A RESOLUTION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2014-15 ANNUAL 
BUDGET IN THE AMOUNT OF $260,000 FOR IMPROVEMENTS TO THE ROSENBERG BUSINESS PARK.  
 
Executive Summary:  Previously the RDC approved a development agreement with Rosenberg Business Park, Ltd., 



 

 
PAGE 3 of 4 * ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION MEETING MINUTES * 

February 12, 2015 
*** DRAFT *** 

for the Rosenberg Business Park. This agreement requires RDC and the City to provide infrastructure improvements. 
RDC and the City each committed $1.7 million to the project. The City has received bids for the project, and staff is 
planning to take the bids to City Council for approval on February 17. Prior to Council approval additional funding in the 
amount of $260,000 is needed to cover the bids and the cost for CenterPoint Energy to provide electricity to the site.  
This budget amendment would provide the additional funds to move forward and obtain Council approval for the 
infrastructure improvements. 
 
Key discussion points: 

 Ms. Vasut explained the budget amendment. 
Questions/Answers: 

 President Knesek inquired about a partnership between RDC and the City to fund this item. 
 Ms. Vasut replied that staff met and it was decided to take this funding request to RDC. 
 RDC Board Members agreed to fund half of this amount and to amend the Resolution accordingly. 

 
Action: Director Scopel moved and Director Bailey seconded a motion to amend the amount allocated in the 
Unrestricted Fund Balance from $260,000 to $130,000 for improvements to the Rosenberg Business Park and to 
approve Resolution No. RDC-91 with such revision. The motion passed by a unanimous vote. 
 
RECESS SESSION, RECONVENE SESSION. 
President Knesek recessed the Session at 5:55 p.m., and reconvened the Session at 6:05 p.m. 
 

4.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON APPOINTING MEMBERS TO SERVE ON ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION INCENTIVE COMMITTEE.  

Executive Summary:  Staff recommends appointing interested RDC Members to serve on an Incentive Committee. 
Increasingly, prospect leads sent out by the Governor’s Office of Economic Development and Greater Houston Partnership 
(GHP) are asking for the type of incentives offered by communities.  

The purpose of the Incentive Committee would be to evaluate the types of incentives typically offered by communities 
and economic development corporations in the Houston region and to determine our competiveness in the Houston 
market. The Incentive Committee would also recommend potential types of incentives and minimum incentive criteria to 
the RDC Board.   
 
Key discussion points: 

 Mr. Malik requested one Director that also serves on the City Council, and one RDC Board Member volunteer 
to serve on the Incentive Committee. 

 Mr. Malik will also contact the Greater Houston Partnership and CenterPoint Energy to request volunteers for 
this Committee.  
 

Action: Director Garcia volunteered as the RDC Board Member, and Director Peña as the City Council representative.  
 

5.  (This item was taken out of order after Item No.1A.) 
HOLD EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 551.072 TO DELIBERATE 
THE POTENTIAL PURCHASE, EXCHANGE, LEASE, OR VALUE OF REAL PROPERTY; AND, PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 551.087 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE REGARDING ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
NEGOTIATIONS. 
 
Regular Session was adjourned for Executive Session at approximately 4:20 p.m. 
 

6.  ADJOURN EXECUTIVE SESSION, RECONVENE REGULAR SESSION, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY AS 
A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
 
Executive Session was adjourned and the RDC Board reconvened Regular Session at approximately 5:25 p.m. 
 
Action: Director McConathy moved and Director Peña seconded a motion to authorize the Economic Development 
Director to negotiate a performance agreement in the amount of $2,500,000 with Texas State Technical College when 
notified the City of Rosenberg is the chosen site for the facility. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

7.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY.
Executive Summary: This item provides the Rosenberg Development Corporation Board the opportunity to request 
future agenda items. 
 
Key discussion points: 

 President Knesek asked to add discussion regarding a long-term solution for future Economic Development 
office space after the facilities plan study from the City of Rosenberg is completed. 

 City Sidewalk Plan. 
 Fort Bend Transit update. 



 

 
PAGE 4 of 4 * ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION MEETING MINUTES * 

February 12, 2015 
*** DRAFT *** 

 The RDC Board Members discussed the Department Reports having been recently removed from RDC 
agendas. Mr. Malik explained the directive he received after City staff members attended a training session 
sponsored by the Office of the Attorney General regarding Public Information processes.. It was reported that 
listing an item that simply states “Departmental Report” does not give the public enough 
information/notification regarding items that could potentially be discussed within the report. Mr. Malik stated 
that he will continue to email reports to the RDC Board Members. President Knesek inquired whether a certain 
agenda item might list more detailed and specific information in order to allow dialog regarding items that 
might be included in the report.  Mr. Malik indicated that he could potentially break report items down to be 
listed individually in order to provide updates on the Rosenberg economy, etc. 

 
8. ANNOUNCEMENTS. 

 
 West Fort Bend Management District Committee is scheduled to meet next week. 
 Imperial Arts litigation – There is a hearing scheduled on March 3 at the Fort Bend County Court House. RDC 

legal counsel goes before the judge at that time. Imperial Arts has requested a motion to dismiss the whole 
suit, an amended declaratory judgment, and a ruling that they are not bound by the Imperial Arts Performance 
Agreement. The City Attorney will have an update at RDC’s March meeting. 

 Cynthia Sullivan accepted another position in the organization to Administrative Assistant in the Information 
Services and Communication Department. President Knesek stated on behalf of the RDC Board, that the RDC 
Board appreciates Ms. Sullivan’s outstanding service to the organization. 
 

9. ADJOURNMENT. 
 
Action:  Director McConathy moved and Director Garcia seconded a motion to adjourn the RDC Board Meeting. The 
motion carried by a unanimous vote.  The meeting adjourned at 6:25 p.m. 

 
        

 
 
________________________________ 
Cynthia Sullivan 
Secretary II 



    
  COMMUNICATION FORM 
 
                   March 12, 2015 
 
ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

B Rosenberg Development Corporation Financial Reports 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on the monthly Rosenberg Development Corporation Financial Report for 
the period ending February 28, 2015. 

APPROVAL SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

     
SUBMITTED BY : 
 

 
 
Joyce Vasut 
Executive Director of Administrative 
Services  
 

 
1) RDC Financial Report – February 2015 

 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The February 2015 RDC Financial Reports are attached for your review and consideration.  Staff 
recommends approval. 
  
 
 
 



2014‐15 2014‐15 2014‐15 2014‐15 % of
Adopted Act. Rev/Exp Encumbered YTD Budget Budget
Budget YTD Remaining

Target

REVENUES: 42%

Sales Taxes 2,840,000$        1,286,040$                ‐$                    1,553,960$        45.28%
Sales Taxes BTC I 575,000            283,721                     ‐                     291,279              49.34%
Sales Taxes BTC II 425,000            233,327                     191,673              54.90%
Downtown Sales Taxes ‐                     16,334                       ‐                     (16,334)             
           Sales Tax Total 3,840,000         1,819,423                  ‐                     2,020,577         
Interest Earnings 5,000                 766                             ‐                     4,234                  15.33%

TOTAL REVENUES 3,845,000         1,820,189                  ‐                     2,024,811          47.34%

EXPENDITURES:
Administration (max 10%):
Office Supplies 1,000                 263                             ‐                     737                     26.33%

Computer Supplies 2,000                 ‐                              ‐                     2,000                  0.00%

Board Meeting and Directors' Expenses 1,700                 681                             ‐                     1,019                  40.05%

General Insurance 400                    277                             ‐                     123                     69.15%

Education and Travel 8,250                 2,943                         ‐                     5,307                  35.68%

Administrative Services 244,374            109,124                     ‐                     135,250              44.65%

Subtotal for Administration Expenses  257,724            113,288                     ‐                     144,436              44%

Marketing:
Greater Fort Bend Economic Development 12,500              ‐                              ‐                     12,500                0.00%

Postage 200                    0.48                            ‐                     200                     0.24%

Freight and Express 100                    13                               ‐                     87                        12.75%

Advertising 30,500              12,071                       ‐                     18,429                39.58%

Printing and Binding 4,500                 340                             ‐                     4,160                  7.56%

Subtotal for Marketing Accounts 47,800              12,424                       ‐                     35,376                25.99%

Memberships & Services:
Business Recruitment 9,000                 ‐                              ‐                     9,000                  0.00%

Dues, Subscriptions & Service Contracts 17,627              13,800                       ‐                     3,827                  78.29%

RDC Memberships 83,000              22,639                       ‐                     60,361                27.28%

Business Retention 10,000              ‐                              ‐                     10,000                0.00%

Subtotal for Memberships & Services Accounts 119,627            36,439                       ‐                     83,188                30%

Professional Services:
Professional Services ‐ Legal Fees 40,000              17,615                       ‐                     22,385                44.04%

Subtotal for Professional Services 40,000              17,615                       ‐                     22,385                44%

Infrastructure:
Prospective Business Incentive 500,000            ‐                              ‐                     500,000              0.00%

Debt Service ‐ Principal 767,235            319,682                     ‐                     447,553              41.67%

Debt Service ‐ Interest 197,708            82,378                       ‐                     115,330              41.67%

Transfer to RDC Projects Fund 1,355,375         1,100,375                  ‐                     255,000              81.19%

Subtotal for Infrastructure Accounts 2,820,318         1,502,435                  ‐                     1,317,883          53%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,285,469$        1,682,201$                ‐$                    1,603,268$        51%

CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS

ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

AS OF FEBRUARY 28, 2015

Classification

1



RDC RDC
Actual Projects Total

Resources:
Total Beginning Fund Balance @ 10/01/14 (audited) 3,755,279$        4,887,495$         8,642,774$       
Revenues and Transfers In 1,820,189         1,100,825           2,921,014         

  Total Funds Available 5,575,468$        5,988,320$         11,563,788$    

Uses/Deductions:
Expenditures and Transfers Out 1,682,201         127,306               1,809,507         

Ending Fund Balance:
Total Ending Fund Balance 3,893,267$        5,861,014$         9,754,281$       
Reserved for Debt Service 964,943            ‐$                      964,943            
Reserved for RDC Projects ‐                     5,861,014$         5,861,014         

Unreserved Fund Balance Total 2,928,324$        ‐$                      2,928,324$       

Classification

ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

2014‐15 ACTUAL

PERIOD ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2015

2



Account Number Description Amount

Revenues

219‐0000‐402‐0000 Sales Taxes  453,735.35$              

Total Current Period Revenues 453,735.35$              

Expenditures

219‐1000‐540‐3110 Office Supplies (Administration) 128.33                         

219‐1000‐540‐3120 Computer Supplies (Administration) ‐                               

219‐1000‐540‐3135 Board Meeting and Directors' Expenses (Administration) 215.30

219‐1000‐540‐5120 General Insurance (Administration) ‐                            

219‐1000‐540‐5510 Education and Travel (Administration) 369.98                         

219‐1000‐540‐5710 Administrative Services (Administration) 40,083.95

Total Administration 40,797.56$                

219‐2000‐540‐4391 Greater Fort Bend Economic Development (Marketing) ‐                               

219‐2000‐540‐5220 Postage (Marketing) ‐                            

219‐2000‐540‐5230 Freight and Express (Marketing) ‐                               

219‐2000‐540‐5310 Advertising (Marketing) ‐                               

219‐2000‐540‐5410 Printing and Binding (Marketing) 84.28                           

Total Marketing 84.28$                         

219‐3000‐540‐3135 Business Recruitment (Memberships and Services) ‐                               

219‐3000‐540‐4235 Dues/Subscriptions/Service Contracts (Memberships and Services) 100.00                         

219‐3000‐540‐4390 RDC Memberships (Memberships and Services ‐                               

219‐3000‐540‐5730 Business Retention (Memberships and Services) ‐                               

Total Business Recruitement 100.00$                      

219‐6000‐540‐4390 Other Professional Services ‐ Legal Fees (Professional Services) 5,760.50

Total Professional Services 5,760.50$                  

219‐7000‐540‐5725 Prospective Business Incentive (Infrastructure) ‐                               

219‐7000‐540‐8110 Debt Service ‐ Principal (Infrastructure) ‐ February 2015 63,936.00

219‐7000‐540‐8120 Debt Service ‐ Interest (Infrastructure) ‐ February 2015 16,476.00

219‐7000‐540‐9225 Transfer to RDC Projects Fund (Infrastructure) 1,100,375.00             

Total Infrastructure 1,180,787.00$          

Total Current Period Expenditures 1,227,529.34$          

Net Excess (Deficit) (773,793.99)$           

Synopsis of Current Revenues and Expenditures

Rosenberg Development Corporation

For the Month Ended February 28, 2015

 3



Monthly CumulativeCumulative Total YTD Monthly Monthly Monthly
Total Actual YTD YTD Gen'l Percent BTC - I BTC - II Downtown

Receipts Receipts Fund Monthly YTD of Budget Month YTD Receipts Receipts Receipts
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)

Cumulative (1) Cumulative (3) (2)/(4)

Oct 253,488$       253,488$        206,329$        206,329$        122.86% 17.3% 17.3% 39,879$      22,088$          
Nov 300,245         553,733           268,681          475,010           116.57% 6.7% 11.3% 41,673        56,236            
Dec 267,903         821,636           206,328          681,337           120.59% 24.0% 15.1% 48,344        18,259            
Jan 240,399         1,062,035       217,242          898,579           118.19% 5.6% 12.8% 40,056        20,626            
Feb 357,120         1,419,155       326,707          1,225,286       115.82% 4.3% 10.6% 76,617        71,043            
Mar 240,499         1,659,655       211,174          1,436,460       115.54% 8.7% 10.3% 39,397        17,709            
Apr 254,107         1,913,762       214,541          1,651,001       115.92% 13.1% 10.7% 40,281        19,444            
May 334,041         2,247,802       298,699          1,949,700       115.29% 6.8% 10.1% 49,039        57,367            
Jun 277,134         2,524,936       232,209          2,181,909       115.72% 13.9% 10.5% 38,850        21,572            
Jul 288,843         2,813,779       250,468          2,432,378       115.68% 10.1% 10.4% 43,577        23,776            
Aug 339,032         3,152,811       298,843          2,731,220       115.44% 8.3% 10.2% 49,537        59,166            
Sep 281,355         3,434,166       238,780          2,970,000       115.63% 12.5% 10.4% 41,584        23,507            
Total 548,834$    410,794$       

Oct $284,645 284,645$        254,303$        254,303$        111.93% 12.3% 12.3% 45,426$      26,206$          2,678$              

Nov 332,266         616,912           301,210          555,512           111.05% 10.7% 11.4% 43,511        62,113            2,709 
Dec 300,765         917,676           268,764          824,276           111.33% 12.3% 11.7% 41,356        23,209            2,873 
Jan 311,275         1,228,951       241,171          1,065,447       115.35% 29.5% 15.7% 55,706        27,306            3,558 

Feb 452,793         1,681,744       358,268          1,423,715       118.12% 26.8% 18.5% 81,972        80,410            5,100 
Mar 269,503         1,951,247       241,272          1,664,988       117.19% 12.1% 17.6% 35,930        21,835            2,401 
Apr 304,220         2,255,468       254,923          1,919,911       117.48% 19.7% 17.9% 44,267        23,697            3,481 
May 372,069         2,627,537       335,114          2,255,025       116.52% 11.4% 16.9% 50,765        60,332            2,784 
Jun 321,933         2,949,470       278,024          2,533,049       116.44% 16.2% 16.8% 42,815        24,392            3,429 
Jul 322,644         3,272,114       289,771          2,822,820       115.92% 11.7% 16.3% 43,395        26,561            3,439 
Aug 381,528         3,653,642       340,121          3,162,941       115.51% 12.5% 15.9% 50,943        63,637            2,954 
Sep 365,422         4,019,064       282,259          3,445,200       116.66% 29.9% 17.0% 44,345        26,570            2,944 
Total 580,432$    466,269$       38,351$           

Oct $328,597 328,597$        283,444$        283,444$        115.93% 15.4% 15.4% 47,153$      27,876$          2,454$              

Nov 383,604         712,201           335,726$        619,171           115.02% 15.5% 15.4% 48,133        66,466            3,267 
Dec 338,699         1,050,900       299,563$        918,734           114.39% 12.6% 14.5% 42,177        24,526            2,589 
Jan 314,787         1,365,687       268,808$        1,187,542       115.00% 1.1% 11.1% 58,756        28,549            3,443 

Feb 453,735         1,819,423       399,323$        1,586,865       114.66% 0.2% 8.2% 87,501        85,910            4,580 
Mar - 268,921$        1,855,785       
Apr - 284,136$        2,139,921       
May - 373,516$        2,513,437       
Jun - 309,884$        2,823,322       
Jul - 322,977$        3,146,299       
Aug - 379,097$        3,525,396       
Sep - 314,604$        3,840,000       
Total 283,721$    233,327$       16,334$           

Fiscal Year 2014-15

Fiscal Year 2013-14

Fiscal Year 2012-13

CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS
RDC SALES TAX REVENUES

Budgeted     Prior Year Pct.
Receipts  Increase (Decrease)

4



GRAPHS

ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
 SALES TAX REVENUES

0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

1,200,000

1,400,000

1,600,000

1,800,000

2,000,000

FY0
6

FY0
7

FY0
8

FY0
9

FY1
0

FY1
1

FY1
2

FY1
3

FY1
4

FY1
5

RDC Sales Tax Collections
through February

Budgeted Totals

Acutal Totals

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

450,000

500,000

O
ct

N
o

v

D
ec

Jan

Fe
b

M
ar

A
p

r

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
l

A
u

g

Se
p

RDC Monthly Sales Tax Revenue

FY 13-14 FY 14-15

 5



Total Adjustment Adjusted

Fiscal Principal Total Principal & for Business Principal &

Year Due Interest Interest Park Interest

2014-15 802,235 197,708 999,943 (35,000)            964,943         

2015-16 652,770 177,221 829,991 (35,000)            794,991         

2016-17 657,305 160,476 817,781 (113,000)          704,781         

2017-18 672,840 147,957 820,797 (113,000)          707,797         

2018-19 687,875 126,890 814,765 (113,000)          701,765         

2019-20 703,410 104,444 807,854 (113,000)          694,854         

2020-21 382,980 85,627 468,607 (191,000)          277,607         

2021-22 387,515 71,341 458,856 (191,000)          267,856         

2022-23 284,800 59,162 343,962 (270,000)          73,962           

2023-24 297,835 48,994 346,829 (270,000)          76,829           

2024-25 228,190 39,216 267,406 (256,000)          11,406           

2025-26 236,225         29,874 266,099 266,099         

2026-27 247,295         19,974 267,269 267,269         

2027-28 255,330         9,557 264,887 264,887         

2028-29 71,400           2,621 74,021 74,021           

2029-30 23,005           489 23,494 23,494           

Total $6,591,010 $1,281,551 $7,872,561 (1,700,000) $6,172,561

2014-2015 Budget

Rosenberg Development Corporation

Outstanding Debt Service

6



CP0705 Total Amount Paid Encumbrance Remaining

Project Description G/L Account Project Cost Project To Date Amount Funds

Transportation Gateway Improvements 225-7000-540-7030 676,392$     647,676$     28,716$     -$     

FY15 Transportation Gateway Improvements 225-7000-540-7038 80,000 1,365 11,686 66,949 

Project Management Fee 4,016 4,016 - - 

  Totals 760,408$     653,057$     40,402$     66,949$     

CP1301 Total Amount Paid Encumbrance Remaining

Project Description G/L Account Project Cost Project To Date Amount Funds

FY2013 Park Improvements 225-7000-540-7030 251,177$     234,596$     -$    16,581$     

  Totals 251,177$     234,596$     -$    16,581$     

CP1302 Total Amount Paid Encumbrance Remaining

Project Description G/L Account Project Cost Project To Date Amount Funds

Business Park Development 225-7000-540-7030 3,589,783$    348,144$     -$    3,241,639$     

Project Management Fee 225-7000-540-4395 85,000 4,038 - 80,962 

  Totals 3,674,783$    352,181$     -$    3,322,602$     

CP1316 Total Amount Paid Encumbrance Remaining

Project Description G/L Account Project Cost Project To Date Amount Funds

Downtown Parking Lot 225-7000-540-7030 250,000$     95,713$    -$    154,287$    

Project Management Fee 12,500 - - 12,500 

  Totals 262,500$     95,713$    -$    166,787$    

CP1317 Total Amount Paid Encumbrance Remaining

Project Description G/L Account Project Cost Project To Date Amount Funds

Bamore Road Phase IV 225-7000-540-7031 750,000$     -$     750,000$    -$     

  Totals 750,000$     -$     750,000$    -$     

CP1402 Total Amount Paid Encumbrance Remaining

Project Description G/L Account Project Cost Project To Date Amount Funds

Aldi Project 225-7000-540-7032 500,000$     -$     -$    500,000$    

  Totals 500,000$     -$     -$    500,000$    

CP1501 Total Amount Paid Encumbrance Remaining

Project Description G/L Account Project Cost Project To Date Amount Funds

Livable Centers 225-7000-540-7035 250,000$     -$     -$    250,000$    

  Totals 250,000$     -$     -$    250,000$    

CP1503 Total Amount Paid Encumbrance Remaining

Project Description G/L Account Project Cost Project To Date Amount Funds

Traffic Signal at Reading Rd and Town Ctr Blvd 225-7000-540-7037 115,375$     -$     -$    115,375$    

  Totals 115,375$     -$     -$    115,375$    

CP1507 Total Amount Paid Encumbrance Remaining

Project Description G/L Account Project Cost Project To Date Amount Funds

Macario Garcia Park Restrooms 225-7000-540-7036 150,000$     -$     -$    150,000$    

  Totals 150,000$     -$     -$    150,000$    

Total 6,612,727$    1,327,494$    790,402$    4,494,831$     

Total Project Management Fees 101,516$     8,054$     -$    93,462$     

Rosenberg Development Corporation

RDC Projects Fund

For the Period Ended February 28, 2015

 7



    
  COMMUNICATION FORM 
 
                   March 12, 2015 
 
ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

C Resolution No. RDC-92 – Amending TexPool Authorized Representatives 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. RDC-92, a Resolution amending the authorized 
representatives of the Rosenberg Development Corporation in the Texas Local Government 
Investment Pool (TexPool) account. 

APPROVAL SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

     
SUBMITTED BY : 
 

 
Joyce Vasut 
Executive Director of Administrative 
Services  
 

 
1) Resolution No. RDC-92 

 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Staff is recommending that Maritza Salazar, previous Budget Analyst, be removed and Luis Garza, 
Accounting Supervisor be added to the list of authorized representatives for the Rosenberg 
Development Corporation Local Government Investment Pool (TexPool) investment account. This 
action is necessary to authorize TexPool to issue a personal identification number to allow all 
authorized representatives to transact business with TexPool. The following is a list of authorized 
representatives: 
 

 Randall Malik, Executive Director, Rosenberg Development Corporation 
 Robert Gracia, City Manager 
 Joyce Vasut, Executive Director of Administrative Services 
 Luis Garza, Accounting Supervisor 

 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. RDC-92 as presented. 
  
 
 
 



ORIGINAL SIGNATURE AND DOCUMENT REQUIRED                                                                  TEX – REP
TexPool Participant Services � Federated Investors Inc

1001 Texas Ave., Suite 1400 � Houston, TX 77002 � www.texpool.com � 1-866-839-7665 
0 6 /13

RESOLUTION AMENDING
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

WHEREAS, ______________________________________________________________________
(Participant Name & Location Number)

(“Participant”) is a local government of the State of Texas and is empowered to delegate to a public funds 

investment pool the authority to invest funds and to act as custodian of investments purchased with local 

investment funds; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Participant to invest local funds in investments that provide for 

the preservation and safety of principal, liquidity, and yield consistent with the Public Funds Investment Act; and

WHEREAS, the Texas Local Government Investment Pool (“TexPool/ Texpool Prime”), a public funds 

investment pool, were created on behalf of entities whose investment objective in order of priority are 

preservation and safety of principal, liquidity, and yield consistent with the Public Funds Investment Act.

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved as follows:

A. That the individuals, whose signatures appear in this Resolution, are Authorized Representatives of 

the Participant and are each hereby authorized to transmit funds for investment in TexPool / TexPool 

Prime and are each further authorized to withdraw funds from time to time, to issue letters of 

instruction, and to take all other actions deemed necessary or appropriate for the investment of local 

funds.

B. That an Authorized Representative of the Participant may be deleted by a written instrument signed 

by two remaining Authorized Representatives provided that the deleted Authorized Representative (1) 

is assigned job duties that no longer require access to the Participant’s TexPool / TexPool Prime

account or (2) is no longer employed by the Participant; and

C. That the Participant may by Amending Resolution signed by the Participant add an Authorized 

Representative provided the additional Authorized Representative is an officer, employee, or agent of 

the Participant;

List the Authorized Representatives of the Participant. Any new individuals will be issued personal identification 
numbers to transact business with TexPool Participant Services.
1.  Name: Title:
Phone/Fax/Email:

Signature:

2.  Name: Title:
Phone/Fax/Email:

Signature:

Rosenberg Development Corporation, Location 77477

Joyce Vasut Executive Director of Administrative Svcs.

Robert Gracia City Manager

cynthias
Typewritten Text

cynthias
Typewritten Text

cynthias
Typewritten Text
Resolution No. RDC-92

cynthias
Typewritten Text

cynthias
Typewritten Text

cynthias
Typewritten Text

cynthias
Typewritten Text



ORIGINAL SIGNATURE AND DOCUMENT REQUIRED                                                                  TEX – REP
TexPool Participant Services � Federated Investors Inc

1001 Texas Ave., Suite 1400 � Houston, TX 77002 � www.texpool.com � 1-866-839-7665 
0 6 /13

3.  Name: Title:
Phone/Fax/Email:

Signature:

4.  Name: Title:
Phone/Fax/Email:

Signature:

List the name of the Authorized Representative listed above that will have primary responsibility for performing 
transactions and receiving confirmations and monthly statements under the Participation Agreement.

Name

In addition and at the option of the Participant, one additional Authorized Representative can be designated to 
perform only inquiry of selected information. This limited representative cannot perform transactions. If the 
Participant desires to designate a representative with inquiry rights only, complete the following information.

5.  Name: Title:
Phone/Fax/Email:

D. That this Resolution and its authorization shall continue in full force and effect until amended or 
revoked by the Participant, and until TexPool Participant Services receives a copy of any such amendment or 
revocation. This Resolution is hereby introduced and adopted by the Participant at its regular/special meeting held 
on the ______day ______________________, 20 ___.

Document is to be signed by your Board President, Mayor or County Judge and             
attested by your Board Secretary, City Secretary or County Clerk.

NAME OF PARTICIPANT:

SIGNED:
Signature

Printed Name

Title

ATTEST:
Signature

Printed Name

Title

This document supersedes all prior Authorized Representative designations.

Randall Malik Economic Development Director

Luis Garza Accounting Supervisor

Joyce Vasut

City of Rosenberg

Bill Knesek

President

Linda Cernosek

City Secretary



 
 

 
ITEM 1 

 
Hold Executive Session to receive legal advice 
from the City Attorney concerning contemplated 
litigation, namely dispute with Imperial 
Performing Arts, Inc., pursuant to Section 
551.071 of the Texas Government Code; to 
deliberate the potential purchase, exchange, 
lease, or value of real property pursuant to 
Texas Government Code Section 551.072; and, 
for deliberations regarding economic 
development negotiations pursuant to Section 
551.087 of the Texas Government Code. 
 
  



 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 2 
 

Adjourn Executive Session, reconvene 
Regular Session, and take action as 
necessary as a result of Executive Session. 
 



    
  COMMUNICATION FORM 
 
                   March 12, 2015 
 
ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

3 Fort Bend Transit Contract Agreement 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on an Agreement for Transportation Service by and between Rosenberg 
Development Corporation and Fort Bend County for bus services in Rosenberg. 

APPROVAL SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

     
SUBMITTED BY : 
 

 
 
Randall Malik 
RDC Executive Director 
 

 
1) Agreement - Transportation Services 

Rosenberg DC v2 
 

2) RDC Meeting Minute Excerpt – 01-08-15 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This agenda item includes a proposed agreement between Fort Bend County and the Rosenberg 
Development Corporation for Transportation Services. Transportation services include the operation of 
a bus route through Rosenberg and Richmond.  

At the January 8, 2015 RDC Meeting, the Rosenberg Development Board of Directors approved 
allocating $75,000 for transportation services provided by the Fort Bend County Transportation 
Department and authorizing the RDC Attorney to review the contract. The agreement has been 
approved by the RDC Attorney. The RDC Attorney will be available to answer any questions on the 
agreement at the meeting. 

  
 
 
 



STATE OF TEXAS  § 

    § 
COUNTY OF FORT BEND § 
 

AGREEMENT FOR TRANSPORTATION SERVICE 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between Fort Bend County, 
(hereinafter “County”), a body corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas, and 
the Rosenberg Development Corporation (hereinafter “Corporation”), an economic 
development corporation authorized to conduct business in the State of Texas. 

W I T N E S S E T H 

WHEREAS, County operates a transit service to serve the needs of the citizens of Fort 
Bend County; and 

WHEREAS, the target geographic area of such service are frequently residents of Fort 
Bend County who regularly travel within the Cities of Richmond and Rosenberg in Fort Bend 
County; and 

WHEREAS, Corporation recognizes the economic benefit of continued and expanded 
transit services to areas served by the Corporation; and 

WHEREAS, County and Corporation believe it is in the mutual best interests to 
participate in a point deviation transit service within the cities of Richmond and Rosenberg 
(“Service”); and 

WHEREAS, the Corporation desires to financially support the Service, including 
participating in the local match support in part, for operating costs in connection with the 
Service; and 

WHEREAS, the Commissioners Court of Fort Bend County finds that the Services 
contemplated in this Agreement serve a County purpose; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions set forth 
below, the parties agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

 Section 1.  Incorporation of Preamble 

The parties agree that the representations, covenants and recitations set forth in the 
foregoing recitals are material to this Agreement and are incorporated into this Agreement.   

Section 2.  Purpose 



 -2- 

 2.1 The purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the financial assistance for point 
deviation transportation services provided by the County within the Cities of Richmond and 
Rosenberg to meet the needs of residents of Fort Bend County who regularly travel within the 
Cities of Richmond and Rosenberg.   

2.2 County will operate point deviation services within the Cities of Richmond and 
Rosenberg for a minimum of two hundred fifty-two (252) services days per year (excluding 
County holidays and emergency closures). 

Section 3.  Term and Termination 

3.1 This Agreement shall be effective on the date the last party executes this 
Agreement (“Effective Date”) and will remain in effect for an initial term of three (3) years after 
the Effective Date (“Initial Term”). 

3.2 Unless terminated sooner, this Agreement shall automatically renew for 
successive one (1) year terms (collectively referred to as “Renewal Terms”), subject to 
termination rights provided herein. 

3.3 Either party may terminate this Agreement by serving a ninety (90) day advance 
written notice of termination on the other party.  In the event of termination by either party 
without cause, County shall pay to the Corporation a pro rata share of the initial amount paid 
by the Corporation under Article V, Section A.  If the Agreement is terminated by either party 
without cause during any of the Renewal Terms, County shall pay to the Corporation the 
monthly pro rata share remaining in the Renewal Term.   

3.4 County reserves the right to discontinue the Service at any time.  In the event 
Service is discontinued during the Initial Term for any reason, County shall pay to the 
Corporation a pro rata share of the initial annual amount paid by the Corporation under Article 
V, Section A for the year in question.  For example, if County discontinues Service after thirty 
(30) months, and Corporation has paid the annual initial amount for the third year, County shall 
pay to the Corporation six (6) months of the fee paid by the Corporation for the Initial Term.  If 
Service is discontinued by the County during any of the Renewal Terms, County shall pay to the 
Corporation the monthly pro rata share remaining in the Renewal Term. 

3.5 Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement, if this Agreement 
provides for Corporation to make payments to County in any fiscal year following Corporation's 
fiscal year in which this Agreement begins and Corporation fails to appropriate funds to make 
the payments 

3.5.1 Corporation agrees to provide notice of failure to appropriate funds 
within ten (10) days of appropriation decision,  

3.5.2 This Agreement shall automatically terminate at the beginning of the first 
day of the successive fiscal year for which funds were not appropriated, and  



 -3- 

3.5.3 Corporation shall not be obligated to make or have any liability to County 
for the payments. 

Section 4. County’s Obligations 

4.1 County will operate point deviation services within the Cities of Richmond and 
Rosenberg for a minimum of two hundred fifty-two (252) service days per year (excluding 
County holidays and emergency closures). 

4.1.1 Operation days, hours, stops and schedule will be agreed to in writing by 
Corporation and County at least ninety (90) days prior to commencement of Service. 

4.1.2 Days, hours, stops and schedule changes will be limited to no more than 
three (3) adjustments per year.  Schedule changes must be agreed to in writing by 
Corporation and County with a minimum of ninety (90) days allowed for start of the 
service change. 

4.1.3 During the term of this Agreement, County may increase or decrease 
service hours, days, and stops to provide the Service based on utilization, funding, need 
or request of the Corporation. 

4.2 County will operate the service utilizing a minimum of three (3) 20-passenger 
capacity mini-buses with capacity for 2 wheelchair tie-downs.  However, during the term of this 
Agreement, County may increase or decrease the number of buses and/or the bus sizes to 
provide the Service based on utilization, need or request of Corporation. 

4.3 County and/or its agent will be responsible for management and supervision of 
all aspects of the service and any sub-contractors. Management and supervision of the service 
shall include, but not be limited to sub-contractor management, marketing and support 
services. 

4.4 County will continue the service on an annual term, based on the availability of 
funding. 

4.5 Whether during the Initial Term of this Agreement or any renewal term, County 
shall notify Corporation of any funding partner that enters into or cancels support of the 
Services herein.  County and Corporation may renegotiate Corporation’s proportionate share as 
applicable or Corporation can elect to maintain this Agreement as set out herein or as 
amended.  Any changes to payments to be made under this Agreement shall be made by 
Amendment, in writing and incorporated herein, by mutual agreement of the parties. 

Section 5.  Corporation’s Obligations 

5.1 Corporation shall pay County seventy-five thousand dollars and 00/NO 
($75,000.00) annually for the Initial Term of this Agreement.  County shall submit an invoice to 



 -4- 

Corporation by November 30th each year.  Payment shall be due within thirty (30) days of 
receipt of invoice. 

5.2 During any renewal term of this Agreement, Corporation shall pay County its 
proportionate share for all hours of Service based on the current rates paid by County to 
County bus service contractor.  County shall provide Corporation notice of any rate increases 
within thirty (30) days of approval of such rate increases. 

 

 Section 6.  Modifications and Waivers 

 6.1 The parties may not amend or waive this Agreement, except by a written 
agreement executed by both parties.   

6.2 No failure or delay in exercising any right or remedy or requiring the satisfaction 
of any condition under this Agreement, and no course of dealing between the parties, operates 
as a waiver or estoppel of any right, remedy, or condition. 

6.3 The rights and remedies of the parties set forth in this Agreement are not 
exclusive of, but are cumulative to, any rights or remedies now or subsequently existing at law, 
in equity, or by statute. 

 Section 7.  Termination 

7.1 Termination for Convenience – County may terminate this Agreement at any 
time upon thirty (30) days written notice. 

7.2 Termination for Default 

7.2.1 County may terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement for cause 
in the following circumstances: 

7.2.1.1 If Corporation fails to perform services within the time specified in 
the Scope of Services or any extension thereof granted by the County in 
writing; 

7.2.1.2 If Corporation materially breaches any of the covenants or terms 
and conditions set forth in this Agreement or fails to perform any of the 
other provisions of this Agreement or so fails to make progress as to 
endanger performance of this Agreement in accordance with its terms, and 
in any of these circumstances does not cure such breach or failure to 
County’s reasonable satisfaction within a period of ten (10) calendar days 
after receipt of notice from County specifying such breach or failure. 



 -5- 

7.2.2 If, after termination, it is determined for any reason whatsoever that 
Corporation was not in default, or that the default was excusable, the rights and 
obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the termination had been issued for the 
convenience of the County in accordance with Section 7.1 above.  

7.3 Upon termination of this Agreement, County shall compensate Corporation in 
accordance with Section 3, above, for those services which were provided under this 
Agreement prior to its termination and which have not been previously invoiced to County.  
Corporation’s final invoice for said services will be presented to and paid by County in the same 
manner set forth in Section 3 above. 

7.4 If County terminates this Agreement as provided in this Section, no fees of any 
type, other than fees due and payable at the Termination Date, shall thereafter be paid to 
Corporation. 

Section 8.  Insurance  

8.1 County is governed by the Texas Tort Claims Act, Chapter 101.001 et seq., as 
amended, Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code Ann., which sets forth certain limitations and 
restrictions on the types of liability and the types of insurance coverage that can be required of 
County. County warrants and represents that it is insured under a commercial insurance policy 
or self-insured for all claims falling within the Texas Tort Claims Act. 

8.2 Each party to this Agreement agrees that it shall have no liability whatsoever for 
the actions or omissions of an individual employed by another party, regardless of where the 
individual's actions occurred. Each party is solely responsible for the actions and/or omissions 
of its employees and officers. 

Section 9.  Indemnity 

 CORPORATION SHALL INDEMNIFY AND DEFEND COUNTY AGAINST ALL LOSSES, 
LIABILITIES, CLAIMS, CAUSES OF ACTION, AND OTHER EXPENSES, INCLUDING REASONABLE 
ATTORNEYS FEES, ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES OF CORPORATION, ITS AGENTS, SERVANTS OR 
EMPLOYEES, PERFORMED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT THAT RESULT FROM THE NEGLIGENT 
ACT, ERROR, OR OMISSION OF CORPORATION OR ANY OF CORPORATION’S AGENTS, 
SERVANTS OR EMPLOYEES.  
  

Section 10.  Confidential and Proprietary Information 

Corporation expressly acknowledges that County is subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act, TEX. GOV’T CODE ANN. §§ 552.001 et seq., as amended, and notwithstanding 
any provision in the Agreement to the contrary, County will make any information related to 
the Agreement, or otherwise, available to third parties in accordance with the Texas Public 
Information Act.  Any proprietary or confidential information marked as such provided to 
County by Consultant shall not be disclosed to any third party, except as directed by the Texas 
Attorney General in response to a request for such under the Texas Public Information Act, 
which provides for notice to the owner of such marked information and the opportunity for the 



 -6- 

owner of such information to notify the Attorney General of the reasons why such information 
should not be disclosed.  The terms and conditions of the Agreement are not proprietary or 
confidential information. 

 
Section 11.  Notices 

11.1 Each party giving any notice or making any request, demand, or other 
communication (each, a “Notice”) pursuant to this Agreement shall do so in writing and shall 
use one of the following methods of delivery, each of which, for purposes of this Agreement, is 
a writing:  personal delivery, registered or certified mail (in each case, return receipt requested 
and postage prepaid), or nationally recognized overnight courier (with all fees prepaid). 

11.2 Each party giving a Notice shall address the Notice to the receiving party at the 
address listed below or to another address designated by a party in a Notice pursuant to this 
Section: 

 County:  Fort Bend County Public Transportation 
Attn: Paulette Shelton, Director 
12550 Emily Court, Suite 400 

    Sugar Land, Texas 77478 

 With a copy to: Fort Bend County 
    Attn:  Robert E. Hebert, County Judge 
    401 Jackson Street 
    Richmond, Texas 77469 

 Corporation:  Rosenberg Development Corporation 
    Attn: Randall Malik, Executive Director 

2110 4th Street 
    Rosenberg, Texas 77471 
 
11.3 A Notice is effective only if the party giving or making the Notice has complied 

with subsections 11.1 and 11.2 and if the addressee has received the Notice.  A Notice is 
deemed received as follows: 

11.3.1 If the Notice is delivered in person, or sent by registered or certified mail 
or a nationally recognized overnight courier, upon receipt as indicated by the date on the 
signed receipt. 

11.3.2 If the addressee rejects or otherwise refuses to accept the Notice, or if 
the Notice cannot be delivered because of a change in address for which no Notice was given, 
then upon the rejection, refusal, or inability to deliver. 

 Section 12.  Assignment and Delegation 



 -7- 

 12.1 Neither party may assign any of its rights under this Agreement, except with the 
prior written consent of the other party.  That party shall not unreasonably withhold its 
consent.  All assignments of rights are prohibited under this subsection, whether they are 
voluntarily or involuntarily, by merger, consolidation, dissolution, operation of law, or any other 
manner.   

12.2 Any purported assignment of rights or delegation of performance in violation of 
this Section is void. 

 Section 13.  Applicable Law 

 The laws of the State of Texas govern all disputes arising out of or relating to this 
Agreement.  The parties hereto acknowledge that venue is proper in Fort Bend County, Texas, 
for all legal actions or proceedings arising out of or relating to this Agreement and waive the 
right to sue or be sued elsewhere.  Nothing in the Agreement shall be construed to waive the 
County’s sovereign immunity. 

 Section 14.  Successors and Assigns 

County and Corporation bind themselves and their successors, executors, administrators 
and assigns to the other party of this Agreement and to the successors, executors, 
administrators and assigns of the other party, in respect to all covenants of this Agreement. 

Section 15.  Severability 

If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, 
the remaining provisions remain in full force, if the essential terms and conditions of this 
Agreement for each party remain valid, binding, and enforceable. 

 Section 16.  Captions 

 The section captions used in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and 
do not affect the interpretation or construction of this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have signed or have caused their respective 
names to be signed to multiple counterparts to be effective on the _____ day of 
_____________, 20__. 

 
[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.] 

  



 -8- 

FORT BEND COUNTY     ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
 

 
______________________________  _____________________________  

Robert E. Hebert, County Judge   Bill Knesek, President 
 
      
______________________________  _____________________________  
Date       Date 
 
 
 
ATTEST:      ATTEST: 
             
  
______________________________  _____________________________ 
Laura Richard, County Clerk    Linda Cernosek, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Paulette Shelton, Director 



 
PAGE 4 of 6 * ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION MEETING MINUTES * 

January 08, 2015 
 

7.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS A PRESENTATION FROM PAULETTE SHELTON, DIRECTOR FOR FORT BEND 
COUNTY PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT ON THE STATUS OF PROPOSED 
ROSENBERG/RICHMOND BUS ROUTE, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY. 
Executive Summary:  Paulette Shelton, Fort Bend Transit Director, is planning to attend the meeting to provide an 
update on the proposed Rosenberg/Richmond Bus Route. This project is proposed to be funded with four partners 
(Richmond, Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, and the George Foundation) sharing equally in the cost of the bus transit 
service. 
 
Key discussion points: 

 Mr. Malik reminded the Board Ms. Shelton attended the last Board meeting to update the Board on the 
proposed bus route and overall project. 

 Ms. Shelton distributed the proposed bus route, with possible routes and schedules. Ms. Shelton further stated 
that since the last visit with the Board, there had been a site visit by the George Foundation. 

Questions/Answers: 
 Director McConathy asked about the dashed line on the drawing. Ms. Shelton explained the dashed line is the 

railroad tracks. 
 Vice President Scopel asked about the blue dashes going across US 59, and down to University of Houston. 
 Ms. Shelton stated an iteration of this schedule shows commuter options and a parking lot on FM 762 that 

could be used for a stop on this bus route. 
 Mr. Malik stated the main change is the area on Avenue D and north of the railroad tracks. 
 Director Peña stated the railroad is going to increase their rail traffic to Freeport/Galveston area. Traffic will be 

even more heavily traveled in the area across from the library, a highly traveled area, and Director Peña 
proposed going underneath the underpass between Rosenberg and Richmond, down Reading Road and turn 
on Town Center Boulevard. His concern with that route is the safety of traffic. An alternative would be coming 
around the Justice Center and catch Lane Drive which turns into Reading Road, and have a controlled 
overpass avoiding the trains. 

 Ms. Shelton states north Richmond area residents are trying to get to Wal-Mart.  
 Director Garcia asked about any stops on the north area of Rosenberg near Avenue D. 
 Director Peña pointed out that instead of going across the railroad tracks, the route plans to drive over the 

bridge and catch Highway 90A toward Fiesta.  
 
No action was taken. 
 

8.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON AN AGREEMENT FOR TRANSPORTATION SERVICE BY AND 
BETWEEN ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION AND FORT BEND COUNTY FOR BUS SERVICES IN 
ROSENBERG IN THE AMOUNT OF $83,725. 
Executive Summary: This agenda item includes a proposed agreement between Fort Bend County and the 
Rosenberg Development Corporation for Transportation Services. Transportation services include the operation of a 
bus route through Rosenberg and Richmond. The Rosenberg Development Corporation has budgeted $80,000 in the 
Fiscal Year 2015 Budget for transportation services provided by the Fort Bend County Transportation Department. 
 
Key discussion points: 

 Ms. Shelton explained a partnership of four entities. Richmond Development Corporation has approved the 
amount of $75,000 for this project.  

 Fort Bend County has been approached by the Wessendorff Foundation to submit an application for funding. 
 Ms. Shelton asked the RDC Board of Directors to consider a $75,000 contribution to the Fort Bend County 

Transportation Service. 
 Ms. Shelton reported Richmond has requested changes in the contract language. If either party cancels the 

contract without cause, there will be pro-rata share returned to each partner. She further stated a request for 
two additional changes; driver records and background checks be made available on a consistent basis. Fort 
Bend County does not operate the service directly, but contracts this service to a private company. 

 Vice President Scopel offered his approval to fund $75,000 and allow our attorney to look at the contract. 
 Director McConathy asked a question on Section 3.2 of the contract regarding automatic renewal without the 

benefit of the RDC Board. She prefers the RDC Board have the opportunity to look at this contract before the 
contract renews. 

 Director Bailey asked what controls are in place for RDC giving the funding to the County, but the County is 
contracting the service out to the private sector.  

 Ms. Shelton stated there are extensive monitoring visits, and driving records are kept. The advantages are 
reimbursement rates are better and it takes the money out to the private sector. 

 Director Bailey asked if there was ever an accident, would RDC be a party to the lawsuit. Ms. Shelton stated 
that most likely in the event of an accident, each entity would be liable if a lawsuit was filed. 

 Director Garcia asked about Section 3.4; the County has no obligation to return any funds to any party if the 
contract is cancelled.  

 Ms. Shelton is proposing a pro-rata share back if the contract is cancelled by any entity. 
 Director Garcia stated he understands that if the total amount of funding is $251,000 and there are five (5) 

partners to the Transit System that would lower each share to $50,000. His concern is the initial investment. 

cynthias
Rectangle



 
PAGE 5 of 6 * ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION MEETING MINUTES * 

January 08, 2015 
 

 Director Peña stated the County is asking for $75,000 initial investment and RDC already budgeted $80,000 
for this project. 

 Director Peña asked if there is a problem with a certain crossing, how the contract would be amended. 
 Ms. Shelton stated it could not be changed in a day, but would go through the proper processes. 

 
Action:  Director Bailey moved and Director McConathy seconded a motion to authorize the expenditure of $75,000 for 
bus services in Rosenberg and submit the funding agreement/contract to RDC attorney for review. The motion carried 
by a unanimous vote of those present. 
 

9.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS CITY SIDEWALK PLAN, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY. 
Executive Summary: This item has been added to provide the Board an opportunity to discuss potential sidewalk 
projects in the City of Rosenberg, and to take action if necessary. 

 
Key discussion points: 

 Mr. Tanner explained the City has a sidewalk plan that governs where developers have to install sidewalks. 
The City recently adopted a sidewalk repair and maintenance program. The City does not have funding for 
installing new sidewalks if not installed by developers. RDC approached the City a few months ago with 
questions about installing sidewalks and make connections in the City. The City further looked at areas that 
would benefit commercial development in existing business areas and make those connections. Generally 
speaking, the cost is approximately $25 per linear foot or $130,000 per mile of sidewalk. 

 Director McConathy asked if this price includes just one side of the street, not both sides and Mr. Tanner 
confirmed the cost is for just one side of the street. 

 Director Peña asked if there is a preference for the north versus the south side of the street for planned 
sidewalk connections. Mr. Tanner stated installation is based on the plan the City has already made. 

 Director McConathy asked what the two different colors represented on the plan. Mr. Tanner stated the purple 
is sidewalks already funded.  

 Director Peña asked about Avenue G and Mr. Tanner reported Avenue G falls under our sidewalk repair 
program already funded. 

 Mr. Malik reminded the Board that they had discussed these areas, and the Board is interested in funding new 
sidewalks in commercial areas. He and Mr. Tanner had discussed possible areas. 

 Director McConathy asked Mr. Tanner to prepare a proposal regarding businesses coming in and bring the 
cost to that proposal back to the Board for funding sidewalks in commercial areas. 

 Mr. Tanner said the projects would be based on a possible funding amount. 
 Vice President Scopel asked Mr. Tanner to mark those individual areas with a cost and to bring that plan back 

when President Knesek is able to attend the Board meeting. 
 
No action was taken. 
 

10.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS OLD RICHMOND ROAD AND JENNETTA STREET RECONSTRUCTION, AND TAKE 
ACTION AS NECESSARY. 
Executive Summary: This item was added by RDC Director Jimmie Peña for consideration of RDC funding for the 
reconstruction of Old Richmond Road. The project was included in the City of Rosenberg FY2014 Capital Improvement 
Project list. The FY2014 Capital Improvement Project list was approved by City Council on September 17, 2013. On 
October 15, 2013, City Council approved Resolution No. R-1705, which approved the reconstruction of Old Richmond 
Road and Jennetta Street, including necessary drainage improvements with the participation of Fort Bend County 
Road and Bridge. 
 
Key discussion points: 

 City Manager Gracia briefed the Board that in 2014 City Council approved $500,000 for improvements. To 
date, the City has spent $143,000 on an engineering study and also completed some drainage work. The City 
will need an alternative route to get people from point A to point B. It can and will be a major corridor for 
people driving through Rosenberg and brings people into the Historic Downtown District. 

 Director Bailey pointed out as she was reading through minutes from previous City Council meetings, the 
question was asked if there was funding for this road, and the answer was always yes. 

 Director Peña stated the $500,000 was funded for the engineering study only. The City used the money to 
repair the road.  

 Director McConathy asked if the engineering study addresses the long term drainage issues. 
 Director Bailey stated it seems like this is a City or a bond issue, not an RDC funding issue. 
 Director Bailey asked if the $500,000 budgeted will go for the engineering study.  
 Mr. Gracia reported $143,000 was for the engineering study, some of the funds were spent on drainage work 

that was needed, and in order to complete the project the City needs $1,500,000. 
 Vice President Scopel asked about the funding possibility for RDC for this project. Ms. Vasut said at this time, 

RDC would not have to go into additional debt to fund this project. The entire project was going to be a part of 
the bond election, but there was no bond election. The City does not have the $1,500,000 at this time for this 
project, and in order to move the project more quickly, it was brought to RDC to request funding.  

 Mr. Malik pointed out with the Paragon project and the $4,750,000 with completion of that, RDC has $100,000 
to $200,000 wiggle room in the budget to avoid additional debt. 

cynthias
Rectangle



    
  COMMUNICATION FORM 
 
                   March 12, 2015 
 
ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

4 Texas Open Meeting Act 

ITEM/MOTION 

Review and discuss Section 551.041 of the Texas Open Meetings Act – Notice of Meeting 
Required as it relates to departmental reports being removed from meeting agendas and take 
action as necessary. 

APPROVAL SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

     
SUBMITTED BY : 
 

 
 
Randall Malik 
RDC Executive Director 
 

 
1. TML: Texas Government Code 551.041 

Handout 

  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This item has been included to provide the Economic Development Director the opportunity to 
update the Board on the removal of departmental reports from meeting agendas as per Section 
551.041 of the Texas Open Meeting Act. The RDC Attorney will be available to answer any questions 
about this item at the meeting. 

  
 
 
 



What notice is required by the Texas Open Meetings Act?  (TML) 

The Texas Open Meetings Act (Act) requires written notice of the date, hour, place, and subject  
of all meetings. TEX. GOV’T CODE § 551.041. The agendas for all meetings subject to the Act  
must be posted at least 72 hours before the meeting.  
 
Any action taken in violation of Act’s notice requirements is voidable. TEX. GOV’T CODE §  
551.141; Swate v. Medina Community Hospital, 966 S.W.2d 693, 699 (Tex. App.—San Antonio  
1998, pet. denied). This means that an action in violation of the Act may be voided by a court  
pursuant to a lawsuit filed for that purpose. See Collin County v. Home Owners’ Association for  
Values Essential to Neighborhoods, 716 F.Supp. 953, 960 (N.D. Tex. 1989), City of Bells v.  
Greater Texoma Utility Authority, 744 S.W.2d 636, 640 (Tex. App.—Dallas 1987, no writ). If  
some, but not all, actions in a meeting are in violation of the Act, only those actions in violation  
may be voided. Point Isabel Indep. Sch. Dist. v. Hinojosa, 797 S.W.2d 176, 182—183  
(Tex.App. — Corpus Christi 1990, writ denied).  
 
While the date, hour, and place of a meeting are self‐explanatory, whether the agenda gives the  
general public sufficient notice of the subjects to be discussed is often a source of confusion for  
city officials. The agenda serves to give the general public access to decision making by their  
governing body, and the specificity of the subjects listed on the agenda depends upon the  
situation. For example, a posted agenda listing “personnel” as a subject to be discussed may be  
sufficient notice in one situation, but not in another. The Supreme Court of Texas has held that a  
subject listing of “personnel” was not sufficient notice of a discussion surrounding the hiring of a  
new superintendent of a school district. Cox Enterprises, Inc v. Board of Trustees, 706 S.W.2d  
956, 959 (Tex. 1986). The hiring of a new superintendent is a matter of great public interest,  
held the court, and “personnel” was not specific enough to notify the general public of the  
discussion to be held in executive session. Id. The same was held to be true for the termination  
of a police chief. Mayes v. City of De Leon, 922 S.W.2d 200 (Tex. App.—Eastland 1996, writ  
denied). While the posting of “personnel” may be sufficient for less publicized positions, such  
as clerks, the TML Legal Services Department advises that more specific notice, including  
listing the reason for the discussion and/or action and the employee’s or officer’s name or  
position, is the better practice.  
 
Phrases such as “old business,” “new business,” “regular or routine business,” or “other  
business” do not address the subjects to be discussed in any way, and have been declared  
insufficient notice to the general public for the purposes of the Act. Tex. Att’y Gen. Op. No. H‐ 
662 (1975) at 3. In addition, “presentation,” “mayor’s report,” or “city manager’s report” is not  
sufficient where a presentation is to be made by a city employee or official. In that case, the  
governing body has the ability to ascertain what the city employee or official will discuss prior to  
the meeting. Thus, the specific subject matter of the presentation should be posted. Hays 10  
County Water Planning P’ship v. Hays County, 41 S.W.3d 174, 180 (Tex. App.—Austin 2001,  
pet. denied); Tex. Att’y Gen. Op. No. GA‐668 (2008).  
 
The phrase “public comment” may be used in a posted agenda to provide notice of a period in  
which members of the public may address the governing body regarding subjects not listed on  
the agenda. The city is not generally expected to post notice of the subjects to be discussed in  
this case because the city has no way of knowing what subjects members of the public may wish  
to address. Tex. Att’y Gen. Op. JC‐0169 (2000). City officials may respond to questions asked  

cynthias
Rectangle



during the public comment period only with factual statements, a recitation of existing city  
policy, or by placing the subject on the agenda for a future meeting. Id.; TEX. GOV’T CODE §  
551.042.  
 
Posting that certain subjects will be discussed in executive rather than open session is not  
required. Tex. Att’y. Gen. Op. No. JC‐0057 (1999). However, all subjects that are to be  
discussed in executive session must be described on the agenda in a manner that will provide  
sufficient notice to the public (i.e., they must be just as detailed as open meeting agenda items).  
In addition, if a city has historically indicated on its posted agenda which subjects are to be  
discussed in executive session, and then changes that practice, the city must give adequate notice  
to the public. Id. Many governing bodies include a statement at the end of the agenda informing  
the public that the body may go into executive session, if authorized by the Act, on any posted  
agenda item. Such a statement serves as additional notice to the public of the body’s intentions. 
Cities should be aware that any major change in the way that agenda items are listed, even if  
valid under the Act, can affect the validity of the notice. For example, if the phrase  
“Discussion/Action” is historically used on the posted agenda to indicate when a governing body  
intends to take action on a measure, then a posting of “Discussion” with no notice of the change  
in posting procedures renders any action taken by the council on that subject voidable. River  
Road Neighborhood Association v. South Texas Sports, 720 S.W.2d 551 (Tex. App.—San  
Antonio 1986, writ dismissed); see also Hays County Water Planning P’ship, 41 S.W.3d at 180.  
Without proper notice of the change, the general public has no way of knowing that there has  
been a change in posting procedures.  
 
Finally, a city is not required to notify an individual that he or she will be discussed at a meeting.  
The posted notice must be adequate, but no letter to the person or similar action is necessary in  
most cases. The purpose of the posted agenda is to provide notice to the general public, not to  
replace due process. City of San Antonio v. Fourth Court of Appeals, 820 S.W.2d 762, 764‐765.  
See Retterberg v. Texas Department of Health, 873 S.W.2d 408 (Tex. App.—Austin 1994, no  
writ). 



    
  COMMUNICATION FORM 
 
                   March 12, 2015 
 
ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

5 RDC Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on draft Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Rosenberg 
Development Corporation for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2014, submitted by Pattillo, Brown and 
Hill, L.L.P 

APPROVAL SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

     
SUBMITTED BY : 
 

 
 
Joyce Vasut 
Executive Director of Administrative 
Services  
 

 
1) RDC Comprehensive Annual Financial 

Report (CAFR) - Draft 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Finance Committee (Committee) met on Tuesday, March 03, 2015, to review the draft 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). The Committee recommended several 
amendments for clarification, and subsequently unanimously recommended the acceptance of 
the document as revised. You will find the draft CAFR attached for your review and 
consideration. 
 
A representative of Pattillo, Brown and Hill L.L.P., will be in attendance at the Board Meeting to 
provide an overview of the CAFR and answer any questions the Board may have. 
  
 
 
 



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



    
  COMMUNICATION FORM 
 
                   March 12, 2015 
 
ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

6 City Newsletter 

ITEM/MOTION 

Review and discuss City newsletter, and take action as necessary. 

APPROVAL SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

     
SUBMITTED BY : 
 
 
 
Angela E. Fritz 
Executive Director 
Information Services  

 
1) None.   

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This item has been included to allow staff to provide the Board with an update on the City of 
Rosenberg newsletter following a staff presentation to City Council at the February 24 City Council 
Workshop. 

  
 
 
 



    
  COMMUNICATION FORM 
 
                   March 12, 2015 
 
ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

7 Infrastructure Branding 

ITEM/MOTION 

Review and discuss infrastructure branding, and take action as necessary. 

APPROVAL SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

     
SUBMITTED BY : 
 
 
 
Angela E. Fritz 
Executive Director 
Information Services  

 
1) None.   

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This item has been included to allow staff to provide the Board with an update on opportunities 
related to infrastructure branding following a staff presentation at the February 17 City Council 
Meeting. 

  
 
 
 



    
  COMMUNICATION FORM 
 
                  March 12, 2015 
 
ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

8 Old Richmond Road and Jennetta Street Reconstruction 

ITEM/MOTION 

Review and discuss Old Richmond Road and Jennetta Street Reconstruction, and take action as 
necessary. 

APPROVAL SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

     
SUBMITTED BY : 
 
 
 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of Public Services 

 

1) 2013 Economic Development Handbook 
Excerpt – Infrastructural Projects improvements 
which promote or develop new or expanded 
business enterprises 
 

2) Resolution No. R-1898 – 01-20-15 

3)   Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 1-20-15 

4)   RDC Meeting Minute Excerpt – 01-08-15 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This item was brought back to RDC Board of Directors for consideration of RDC funding for the 
reconstruction of Old Richmond Road.  
 
The project was included in the City of Rosenberg FY2014 Capital Improvement Project list. The FY 
2014 Capital Improvement Project list was approved by City Council on September 17, 2013. On 
October 15, 2013, City Council approved Resolution No. R-1705, which approved the 
reconstruction of Old Richmond Road and Jennetta Street, including necessary drainage 
improvements with the participation of Fort Bend County Road and Bridge. However, Fort Bend 
County Road and Bridge has not been able to schedule the roadway reconstruction due to their 
workload. 
 
In an effort to move the project forward, on January 20, 2015, City Council approved Resolution 
No. R-1898 for an Engineering Services Agreement with CivilCorp, LLC. In the amount of 
$177,262.00 for the Old Richmond Road and Jennetta Street Reconstruction Project. 
 
 Sealed bids would have to be solicited from Contractors for the construction phase of the 
project. The engineer’s preliminary construction cost estimate for this portion of the project is $1.8 
million. Additional drainage improvements will also be required in the vicinity of Jennetta Street 
and the dead end of Avenue F. Preliminary construction cost estimates for the drainage 
improvements and easements are approximately $200,000.      
   
 
  



cynthias
Rectangle



RESOLUTION NO. R-1898 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AN AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING DESIGN 
SERVICES FOR THE OLD RICHMOND ROAD AND JENNETT A 
STREET RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT, BY AND BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND CIVILCORP, LLC, IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $177,262.00. 

* * * * * 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to negotiate and execute an 

Agreement for Engineering Design Services (Agreement) for the Old Richmond Road 

and Jennetta Street Reconstruction Project, by and between the City of Rosenberg, 

Texas, and CivilCorp, LLC, in an amount up to $177,262.00. A copy of such Agreement 

is attached hereto as Exhibit "An and made a part hereof for all purpo~:sl:' n l • A _ 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this ~ day of ~ 2015. 

ATTEST: 

Linda Cernosek, City Secretary 



AGREEMENT FOR 
ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES 

Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1898 

POll 

Old Richmond Road and Jenetta Street Reconstruction 

STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF FORT BEND § 

THIS AGREEMENT, entered into and executed by and between the CITY OF ROSENBERG, a home rule 
municipality under the laws of the State of Texas, hereinafter called "CITY", and CivilCorp, LLC 
hereinafter called "ENGINEER". 

WHEREAS, the ENGINEER represents that it is fully capable of making and qualified to provide assistance 
to the CITY and ENGINEER desires to perfonn the same; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the CITY and the ENGINEER, in consideration of the mutual covenants and 
agreements herein contained, do mutually agree as follows: 

SECTION I 
SCOPE OF AGREEMENT 

The ENGINEER agrees to provide the services as defined in Attachments "A" and "A-I" and any 
Amendments attached hereto and made a part hereof, and for having provided said services, the CITY 
agrees to pay the ENGINEER compensation as stated in the sections to follow. This Agreement takes 
precedence over all attachments in the event of conflicting tenns and conditions. 

SECTION 2 
CHARACTER AND EXTENT OF WORK 

The ENGINEER shall provide the services as defined in Attachments "A" and "A-I" and any Amendments 
attached hereto. The CITY shall be under no obligation to pay for services rendered without prior 
authorization. 

SECTION 3 
TIME FOR PERFORMANCE 

The work shall be perfonned in accordance with Attachments "A" and "A-t". Upon written request of the 
ENGINEER, the CITY may grant time extensions to the extent of any delays caused by the CITY or other 
agencies with which the work must be coordinated and over which the ENGINEER has no control. 

Page I of9 



SECTION 4 
COMPLIANCE AND STANDARDS 

ENGINEER agrees to provide services hereunder in accordance with generally accepted standards 
applicable thereto and shall use that degree of care and skill commensurate with the ENGINEER's trade or 
profession to comply with all applicable state, federal, and local laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations 
and the orders and decrees of any courts, administrative, or regulatory bodies in any matter affecting the 
perfonnance of the Agreement, including, without limitation, worker's compensations laws, minimum and 
maximum salary and wage statutes and regulations and licensing laws and regulations. When required, the 
Engineer shall furnish the City with satisfactory proof of compliance. 

SECTION 5 
CHANGES TO THE PROJECT; ADDITIONAL WORK 

Engineer shall make such revisions to any work that has been completed as are necessary to correct any 
errors or omissions as may appear in such work. If the City finds it necessary to make changes to 
previously satisfactorily completed work or parts thereof, the Engineer shall make such revisions if 
requested and as directed by the City and such services will be considered as additional work and paid for as 
specified under following paragraph. 

The City retains the right to make changes to the Scope of Work at any time by a written order. Work that 
is clearly not within the general description of the Scope of Work and not does not otherwise constitute 
special services under this Agreement must be approved in writing by the City by supplemental agreement 
before the additional work is undertaken by the Engineer. If the Engineer is of the opinion that any work is 
beyond that contemplated in this Agreement and the Scope of Work governing the project and therefore 
constitutes additional work, the Engineer shall promptly notify the City of that opinion, in writing. If the 
City agrees that such work does constitute additional work, then the City and the Engineer shall execute a 
supplemental agreement for the additional work and the City shall compensate the Engineer for the 
additional work on the basis of the rates contained in the Scope of Work. If the changes deduct from the 
extent of the Scope of Work, the contract sum shall be adjusted accordingly. All such changes shall be 
executed under the conditions of the original Agreement 

SECTION 6 
INDEMNIFICATION 

ENGINEER shall and does hereby agree to indemnify and hold harmless the CITY, and all of its 
presen4 future and former agents, employees, officials and representatives harmless in their official, 
individual and representative capacities, from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, 
judgments, liens and expenses (including attorney's fees, whether contractual or statutory), costs and 
damages (whether common law or statutory), costs and damages (whether common law or statutory, 
and whether actual, punitive, consequential or incidental), of , any conceivable character, for injuries 
to persons (including death) or to property (both real and personal) created by, arising from or in any 
manner relating to the services or goods performed or provided by Engineer - expressly including 
those arising through strict liability or under the constitutions of the United States or Texas - BUT 
ONLY TO THE EXTEND ALLOWABLE BY SEC. 271.904 (a) OF THE TEXAS LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT CODE. 

Page 2 of9 



SECTION 7 
FORCE MAJEURE 

Force .Ml!iC!tlre. Neither ENGINEER. its suppliers nor CITY will be liable for any failure or delay in this Agreement due 
to any cause beyond its reasonable control, including acts of war. acts of God, earthquake. Ilood. embargo. riot. sabotage, 
labor shortage or dispute, governmental act or failure of the Internet (not resulting from the negligence or willful 
misconduct of ENGINEER). provided that the delayed party: (a) gives the other party prompt notice of stich cause. and 
(b) uses its reasonable commercial efforts to promptly correct stich failure or delay in pertolmance.lfENGINEER is 
unable to provide services for a period of ten (10) consecuti ve days as a resu It of a continuing force majeure event. CITY 
may cancel the services order without penalty. 

SECTION 8 
THE ENGINEER'S COMPENSATION 

For and in consideration of the sel'vices rendered by the ENGINEER pursuant to this Agreement, the CITY shall pay the 
ENGINEER the amount of$ 1 77,262.00 for "Basic Services" and up to an additional $0.00 for "Additional Services" 
which shall be considered as the total mmdmum lee. The limit ofnpproprialion is addressed in Section 9. 

SECTION 9 
TIME OF PAYMENT 

Payment by the CITY to the ENGINEER shall be made as follows: ENGINEER sholl be provided a purchase order 
number from the CITY and such number shall be referenced on all invoices submitted to the CITY, Upon completion of 
the work, ENGINEER shall submit to the City Manager or designee an invoice. in a form acceptable to the CITY, setting 
torth the charges fbr the services provided which were delivered during such billing period, and the compensation which 
is due for same. If the project work shall take in excess of thirty (30) calendar days. then such invoice shall be submitted 
to the CITY on or about the first of each month. The City Manager shall review the same and approve it with such 
modifications. as deemed appropriete. The CITY shall pay each invoice as approved by the City Manager within thirty 
(30) days after receipt of a true and correct invoice by the CITY. The approval or payment of any such invoice shall not 
be considered to be evidence of pel'tormance by the ENGINEER to the point indicated by such invoice 01' of the receipt 
of or acceptance by the CITY of the services covered by sllch invoice. Invoices shall be submitted to the following 
addl'ess: 

City of Rosenberg Attn: 
Project Director 
P.O. Box 32 
2110 4th Street Rosenberg, Texas 
77471 

Invoices submitted ,,,,ithout a purchase order number , ... i11 be retumed unpaid. Failure to submit invoices to the above 
address will delrty payment. DO NOT submit invoices to any other address for p~tyment. The City's payments under the 
Contract. including the time of payment and the payment of interest on overdue amounts, are subject to Chapter 2251 , 
Texas Government Code. 

Page 3 of9_ 



SECTlON 10 
TIME OF COMPLETION 

The prompt completion of the services under which the Scope of Work relates is critical to the City. 
Unnecessary delays in providing services under the Scope of Work shall be grounds for dismissal of the 
Engineer and termination of this Agreement without any or further liability to the City other than a prorated 
payment for necessary, timely, and conforming work done by Engineer prior to the time of tennination. 
The Scope of Work shall provide, in either calendar days or by providing a final date, a time of completion 
prior to which the Engineer shall have completed all tasks and services described in the Scope of Work. 

This Agreement may be terminated: 

SECTION I I 
TERMINATION 

(I) By the mutual agreement and consent of both Engineer and City; 

(2) By either party, upon the failure of the other party to fulfill its obligations as set forth in either this 
Agreement or a Scope of Work issued under this Agreement; 

(3) By the City, immediately upon notice in writing to the Engineer, as consequence of the failure of 
Engineer to perform the services contemplated by this Agreement in a timely or satisfactory manner, 

(4) By the City, at will and without cause upon not less than thirty (30) days written notice to the Engineer. 

(5) [fthe City tenninates this Agreement pursuant to Section 10 above, or subsection 11 (2) or (3), above, 
the Engineer shall not be entitled to any fees or reimbursable expenses other than the fees and reimbursable 
expenses then due and payable as of the time of termination and only then for those services that have been 
timely and adequately perfonned by the Engineer considering the actual costs incurred by the Engineer in 
performing work to date of termination, the value of the work that is nonetheless usable to the City, the cost 
to the City of employing another engineer to complete the work required and the time required to do so, and 
other factors that affect the value to the City of the work performed at time of termination. In the event of 
termination not the fault of the Engineer, the Engineer shall be compensated for all basic, special, and 
additional services actually performed prior to tennination, together with any reimbursable expenses then 
due. 

SECTION 12 
ADDRESS AND NOTICES AND COMMUNICATIONS 

The parties contemplate that they will engage in informal communications with respect to the subject matter 
of this Agreement. However, any fonnal notices or other communications ("Notice") required to be given 
by one party to the other by this Agreement shall be given in writing addressed to the party to be notified at 
the address set forth below for such party, (i) by delivering the same in person, (ii) by depositing the same in 
the United States Mail, certified or registered. return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed to the 
party to be notified, or (iii) by depositing the same with a nationally recognized courier service guaranteeing 
"next day delivery." addressed to the party to be notified, (iv) by sending the same by telefax with 

Page 4 of9 



COnfilmlng copy sent by mail. or (v) by sending the same by electronic mail with confinning copy sent by 
mail. Notice deposited in the United States mail in the manner hereinabove described shall be deemed 
effective from and after the date of such deposit. Notice given in any other manner shall be effective only if 
and when received by the party to be notified. For the purposes of notice, the addresses of the parties, until 
changed by providing written notice in accordance hereunder, shall be as follows: 

All notices and communications under this Agreement shall be mailed to the ENGINEER at the following 
address: 

CivilCorp, LLC 
Attention: Thomas C. Kuykendall, Jr. 
2825 Wilcrest Dr.; Suite 460 
Houston, TX 77042 
Telephone: 832-252-8100 
Email: tkuykendall@civiIcorp.us 

All notices and communications under this Agreement shall be mailed to the CITY at the following address: 
City of Rosenberg 
Attn: Robert Gracia, City Manager 
P.O. Box 32 
2110 4th Street 
Rosenberg, Texas 77471 
(832) 595-3310 
robertg@cLrosenberg.tx.us 

SECTION 13 
LIMIT OF APPROPRIATION 

Prior to the execution of this Agreement, ENGINEER has been advised by the CITY and ENGINEER 
clearly understands and agrees, such understanding and agreement being of the absolute essence to this 
Agreement, that the CITY shall have available the amount budgeted for this project to discharge any and all 
liabilities which may be incurred by the CITY pursuant to this Agreement and that the total maximum 
compensation that the ENGINEER may become entitled to hereunder and the total maximum sum that the 
CITY shall become liable to pay to ENGINEER hereunder shall not under any conditions, circumstances, or 
interpretations. hereof, exceed the said total maximum sum provided for in this section without prior written 
permission from the CITY. 

SECTION 14 
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The CITY and the ENGINEER bind themselves and their successors, executors, administrators, and assigns 
to the other party of this Agreement and to the successors, executors! administrators and assigns of such 
other party, in respect to all covenants of this Agreement. Neither the CITY nor the ENGINEER shall 
assign. sublet or transfer its or his interest in this Agreement without the written consent of the other, which 
consent will not be unreasonably witlilield. Subcontractors shall comply with all provisions of this 
Agreement and the applicable Scope of Work. The approval or acquiescence of the City in subletting of 
any work shall not relieve the Engineer of any responsibility for work done by such subcontractor. Nothing 

Page 5 of9 



herein shall be construed as creating any personal liability on the part of any officer or agent of any public 
body, which may be a party hereto. 

SECTION 15 
OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 

Upon completion or termination of this Agreement, all documents prepared by the Engineer or furnished to 
the Engineer by the City shall be delivered to and become the property of the City. All drawings, charts, 
calculations, plans, specifications and other data prepared under or pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
made available, upon request, to the City without restriction or limitation on the further use of such 
materials PROVIDED, HOWEVER, THAT SUCH MA TERlALS ARE NOT INTENDED OR 
REPRESENTED TO BE SUITABLE FOR REUSE BY THE CITY OR OTHERS. ANY REUSE 
WITHOUT PRIOR VERIFICATION OR ADAPTATION BY THE ENGINEER FOR THE SPECIFIC 
PURPOSE INTENDED WILL BE AT THE CITY'S SOLE RISK AND WITHOUT LIABILITY TO THE 
ENGINEER. Where applicable, Engineer shall retain all pre-existing proprietary rights in the materials 
provided to the City but shall grant the City a non-exclusive, perpetual, royalty-free license to use such 
proprietary information solely for the purpose for which the information was provided. The Engineer may, 
at Engineer's expense, have copies made of the documents or any other data furnished to the City under or 
pursuant to this Agreement. 

SECTION 16 
ENGINEER'S SEAL 

The Engineer shall place the Texas Professional Engineer's seal of endorsement of the principal engineer on 
all documents and engineering data furnished by the Engineer to the City. All work and services provided 
under this Agreement will be performed in a good and workmanlike fashion and shall conform to the 
accepted standards and practices of the engineering profession. The plans, specifications and engineering 
data provided by Engineer shall be adequate and sufficient to enable those performing the actual 
construction of the work to perform the work as and within the time contemplated by the City and Engineer. 
The City acknowledges that Engineer has no control over the methods or means of construction nor the 
costs of labor, materials or equipment. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, any estimates of construction' 
costs by the Engineer are for informational purposes only and are not guarantees. 

SECTION 17 
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

Engineer acknowledges that Engineer is an independent contractor of the City and is not an employee, 
agent, official or representative of the City. Engineer shall not represent, either expressly or through 
implication, that Engineer is an employee, agent, official or representative of the City. Income taxes, self
employment taxes, social security taxes and the like are the sole responsibility of the Engineer. 

SECTION 18 
NON·COLLUSION 

Engineer represents and warrants that Engineer has not given, made, promised or paid, nor offered to give, 

Page 6 of9 



make, promise or pay any gift, bonus, commission, money or other consideration to any person as an 
inducement to or in order to obtain the work to be provided to the City under this Agreement. Engineer 
further agrees that Engineer shall not accept any gift, bonus, commission, money, or other consideration 
from any person (other than from the City pursuant to this Agreement) for any of the services performed by 
Engineer under or related to this Agreement. If any such gift, bonus, commission, money, or other 
consideration is received by or offered to Engineer, Engineer shall immediately report that fact to the City 
and, at the sole option of the City, the City may elect to accept the consideration for itself or to take the 
value of such consideration as a credit against the compensation otherwise owing to Engineer under or 
pursuant to this Agreement. 

SECTION 19 
MEDIA 

Contact with the news media shall be the sole responsibility of the CITY. ENGINEER shall under no 
circumstances release any material or information developed in the performance of its work hereunder 
without the express written permission of the CITY. 

SECTION 20 
AUTHORITY OF CITY MANAGER 

All work to be performed by the ENGINEER hereunder shall be performed to the satisfaction of the City 
Manager. The City Manager shall decide any and all questions, which may arise as to the quality, or 
acceptability of the work performed by the ENGINEER and the decisions of the City Manager in such 
cases shall be final and binding on both parties. However, nothing contained herein shall be construed to 
authorize the City Manager to aiter, vary or amend this Agreement. 

SECTION 21 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

A current certificate of insurance with the City named as an additional insured is required to be submitted 
to the Purchasing Office before the City will enter into a contract with a vendor. 

A. POLICY REQUIREMENTS 

Prior to the approval of this contract by the City, Engineer shall furnish a completed insurance 
certificate to the Purchasing Office, which shall be completed by an agent authorized to bind the 
named underwriter(s) to the coverage, limits: and termination provisions shown thereon, and which 
shall furnish and contain all required information referenced or indicated thereon. CITY SHALL 
HAVE NO DUTY TO PAY OR PERFORM UNDER THIS CONTRACT UNTIL SUCH 
CERTIFICATE SHALL HAVE BEEN DELIVERED TO THE CITY. and no officer or employee of 
the City shall have authority to waive this requirement. 

B. INSURANCE COVERAGE REQUIRED 

Worker's Compensation - Statutory and Employers Liability with minimum limits of $500,000 each 
accident and $1,000,000 each employee; Commercial General (public) Liability insurance minimum 

Page 7 of9 



limits of $1,000,000 each occurrence including coverage Comprehensive Automobile Combined 
single limit for liability insurance, including bodily injury and property coverage of $1 ,000,000 each 
accident. 

C. ADDITIONAL POLICY ENDORSEMENTS 

CITY shall be entitled, upon request, and without expense, to receive copies of the policies and all 
endorsements thereto and may make any reasonable request for deletion, revision, or modification of 
particular policy terms, conditions, limitations, or exclusions (except where policy provisions are 
established by law or regulation binding upon either of the parties hereto or the undenvriter of any of 
such policies). Upon such request by CITY, ENGINEER shall exercise reasonable efforts to 
accomplish such changes in policy coverage, and shall pay the cost thereof. 

D. REQUIRED PROVISIONS 

ENGINEER agrees with the respect to the above required insurance, all insurance contracts and 
certificate(s) of insurance will co/lta/II and state. ill writing. 011 the certificate or its attachment, 
the following reqllired prollisiollS: 

E.NOTICES 

1. Name the City of Rosenberg and its officers, employees, and elected 
representatives as an additional insured; 

2. Provide for notice to City upon cancellation; 
3. Provide for an endorsement that the "other insurance" clause shall not apply to the 

City of Rosenberg where CITY is an additional insured shown on the policy; 
4. Provide for notice to the City at the address shown; 
5. ENGINEER agrees to waive subrogation against the City of Rosenberg. its officers, 

employees, and elected representatives for injuries. including death, property damage, 
or any other loss to the extent same may be covered by the proceeds of insurance; 

ENGINEER shall notify CITY in the event of any change in coverage and shall give such notices not 
less than 30 days prior to the change, which notice must be accompanied by a replacement 
CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE. All notices shall be given to CITY at the following address: 

F.APPROVAL 

City of Rosenberg 
Attn: Robert Gracia 
P.O. Box 32 
2110 4th Street 
Rosenberg, Texas 77471 

Approval, disapproval, or failure to act by CITY regarding any insurance supplied by ENGINEER 
shall not relieve ENGINEER of full responsibility or liability for damages and accidents as set forth 
in the contract documents. Neither shall the bankruptcy, insolvency, or denial of liability by the 
insurance company exonerate ENGINEER from liability. 

Page 8 of9 



SECTION 22 
MODIFICATIONS 

This instrument, including Attaclunents "A" and "A_I" and any Amendments attached hereto contains the 
entire Agreement between the parties relating to the rights herein granted and the obligations herein 
assumed. [n the event of any conflict between this instrument and/or Attaclunents "AU and "A-I", the CITY 
acting through the City Manager at his sole discretion shall detennine which provision prevails. Any oral or 
written representations or modifications concerning this instrument shall be of no force and effect excepting 
a subsequent modification in writing signed by both parties hereto. 

SECTION 23 
FISCAL FUNDING 

The CITY's fiscal year is October 1st through September 30th. If this contract extends beyond September 
30, 201_, there shall be a fiscal funding out. If, for any reason, funds are not appropriated to continue the 
contract in the new fiscal year, said contract shall become null and void on the last day of the current 
appropriation of funds. Contract will then be tenninated without penalty of any kind or fonn to the CITY. 

SECTION 24 
CHOICE OF LAW 

This Agreement and all the transactions contemplated herein shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Texas. Exclusive venue for any action arising out this Agreement shall be in Fort Bend County, Texas and 
ENGINEER hereby consents to such jurisdiction and venue. 

SECTION 2S 
SEVERABILITY 

In the event that any provision(s) of this Agreement shall for any reason be held invalid, illegal, or 
unenforceable, the invalidity, illegality or unenforceability of that provision(s) shall not affect any other 
provision(s) of this Agreement, and it shall further be construed as if the invalid, illegal, or unenforceable 
provision(s) had never been a part of this Agreement. This document and included Attachments is the entire 
Agreement and recites the full consideration between the parties, there being no other written agreement. 

SECTION 26 
CUMULATIVE REMEDIES 

In the event of default by any party herein, all other parties shall have all rights and remedies afforded to it 
at law or in equity to recover damages and to interpret or enforce the terms of this Agreement. The exercise 
of anyone right or remedy shall be without prejudice to the enforcement of any other right or remedy 
allowed at law or in equity. 

SECTION 27 
WAIVER 

The failure on the part of any party herein at any time to require the performance by any other party of any 
portion of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of, or in any way affect that party's rights to enforce 
such provision or any other provision. Any waiver by any party herein of any provision hereof shall not be 
taken or held to be a waiver of any other provision hereof or any other breach hereof. 

Page90f9 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, said City of Rosenberg has lawfully caused these presents to be executed by the 
City Manager of said CITY and the said ENGINEER, acting by its thereunto duly authorized representative, 
does now sign, execute and deliver this instrument. 

Authorized by the City of Rosenberg, Texas on the __ day of _____ ......:201_. 

Civil Corp, LLC 

Name: Thomas C. Kuykendall, Jr. 
Title: Vice President 

Date 

CITY OF ROSENBERG 

Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

Attest: 

Linda Cemosek 
City Secretary 

Page IOof9 



ATTACHMENT A 

C.hf.H~Qrp 
January 15, 2014 

Mr. John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager 
ety of Rosenberg 
2110 Fourth Street 
Rosenberg, TX 77471 

RE: Old Richmond Road and Jennetta Street Reconstruction 

2825 Wllctest Dr .• Sulle 460 
Houston. Texas 77042 

Telephone: (832) 252-8100 
E·Mall: lkuykendaD@cIvilcorp.us 

Professional Ovll Engineering and Surveying Services Proposal (Revision 1) 

Dear Mr. Maresh: 

CivllCorp, LLC. would like to thank the City of Rosenberg for the opportunity to work and partner with the 
City on this project. In accordance with your request and scoping meeting, CivllCorp submits this proposal to 
the City of Rosenberg for ProfeSSional CivJl Engineering and Surveying Services for the reconstruction of Old 
Richmond Road and Jennetta Street. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The Old Richmond Road reconstruction project will extend from Stll Street to the concrete roadway section 
approximately 850' west of the Intersection of Old Richmond Road and Avenue H (Approx. 9600 LF). The 
Jennetta Street reconstruction will extend from Old Richmond Road to Avenue H (Approx. 1300 LF). Both 
existing rural two lane roadways with open ditches have experienced deterioration and pavement failures in 
recent years due to existing traffiC patterns and loading. The City recently began drainage improvements 
along Old Richmond Road to upgrade culverts and clean out the existing ditches to provide pOSitive 
drainage. No further drainage Improvements are planned In the scope of this project. 

The project scope Includes reconstructing the existing two-lane asphalt road with roadside ditches. The 
existing 20' to 24' width of "scrubber' base and asphaltic surfacing will be removed and replaced with a 
proposed pavement section. Construction bids will be solicited for a 22' to 24' wide pavement utilizing 
flexible base with a hot mix asphalt surface for the base bid and an alternative bid item consisting of a 
concrete pavement section. Additional pavement width for adding left turn lanes at select locations will be 
evaluated during design and will be added to the reconstruction design within the approved baSic scope of 
services, for locations approved by the City. Plans will be prepared in accordance with the City of Rosenberg 
Design Standards. 

SCOPE OF SERVICES: OLD RICHMOND ROAD AND JENNETTA STREET RECONSTRUCTION 

Civil Corp will provide the City of Rosenberg with the following surveying, engineering, project management, 
construction and geotechnical services for the project: 

Surveying 

• TIe to City of Rosenberg or TxDOT control monumentation for horizontal and vertical controls, if 
available. 



CM/Corp, LLC. Page 2 of6 

• Set horizontal and vertical control near project site. 
• Activate One-Call and have existing utilities marked 
• Perform surveying to facilitate Engineering including: 

o TopographIc survey along Old Richmond Road and Jennetta Street to Include existing 
features (driveways, side streets, curbs, gutters, signs, culverts, inlets, utIlities, power poles, 
guy wires, and pavement markings) 

o TIe utIlity markings provided by utility owners 
o TIe soil boring locations 

• Research and establish right-of-way 
• Perform all work in accordance with any applicable standards 

Geotechn(callnvestlgatlon (Provided by Terracon Consultants, Inc.} 

• Provide soil borings at approximately 500' spacing and 5' depth 
• Determine existing pavement depths 
• Prepare soil boring logs 
• Provide report with recommendations for subgrade preparation and pavement design guidelines 
• Additional detailed information can be found in Attachment "B" 

Engineering 

• Obtain and review existing Information. 
• Prepare TItle Sheet for Project. 
• Prepare Index of Sheets (Show on TItle Sheet). 
• Prepare General Notes sheet and Include notes applicable for grading, paving, drainage, and 

utilities. 
• Prepare existing typical section of Old Richmond Road and Jennetta Street. 
• Prepare proposed typical sections of Old Richmond Road and Jennetta Street that show lane 

configuration and pavement structure. 
• Prepare quantity summary sheets for the project including driveway log and demolition plan. 
• Prepare sequence of constructIon with general traffic control plan layout. Identify and modify as 

necessary standard construction and barricade detail sheets. 
• Prepare Overall Project Layout (1" = 400' - Full Size). 
• Prepare demolition plan layout sheets (1"=40' double banked). 
• Prepare roadway plan and profile sheets for Old Richmond Road and Jennetta Street (1" = 40' H, 1" 

= 4' V - Full Size) shOWing horizontal and vertical geometric designs. 
• Prepare storm water pollution prevention plans (SW3P) (1" = 40' double bank - Full Size) showing 

temporary control measures. 
• Develop striping details (Show on roadway plan and profile sheets). 
• Develop miscellaneous detail sheets using City of Rosenberg standard details when available. 
• Develop earthwork cross-sections (1" = 40' H, 1" = 10' V) showing existing and proposed roadway 

sections at 100' Intervals for the proposed roadway. 
• Compute and tabulate construction quantities and prepare estimate. Estimates will be prepared 

and submitted with each review submittal at 30%, 60%, 90% and 100%. 
• Prepare construction bid package to include Notice to Bidders, Instruction and Information to 

Bidders, Bid Proposal Form, Standard Form of Agreement, Bond Forms, General Conditions, Special 
Conditions If any, Technical Specifications and Construction Plans, in accordance with City of 
Rosenberg standards. 



CivilCorp. LLC. Page3of6 

Project Management 

• Develop and Maintain 
o Project Schedules 
o Budgets 
o Monthly Progress Reports and Invoices 

• Meet with the City staff on a regular basis to review project progress and prepare meeting minutes. 
• Coordinate and review the work produced to comply with the aty and County policies and 

procedures, and to deliver that work on time. Complv with all applicable laws, ordinances and 
codes of the State and local governments. 

• Prepare Presentation (1 estimated) for the project to be presented to City Council. 
• Field Reconnaissance. Travel to the project to inspect features along and adjacent to the roadway 

to assist in making decisions concerning roadway design, drainage design, sequence of construction, 
and ROW acquisition. 

• Develop and implement Quality Control and Quality Assurance program. 

Direct Expenses 

• Photocopies 
• Deliveries 
• Mileage 
• GPS Equipment 

DELIVERABLES: OLD RICHMOND ROAD AND JENNETTA STREET RECONSTRUCTION 

ClvilCorp will provide the City of Rosenberg with the followlpS dellverables for each outlined milestone: 

Preliminary DesIgn Meeting 

• Preliminary pavement design recommendations 
• Completed field surveying and topography 
• Preliminary project layout 
• Review and discuss proposed turn lane locations 
• Preliminary cost estimate 

50% Submittal (3-22"x34/1 sets, 1-11 "Xl 7" set, and 1- PDF set) 

• Completed 3-d DTM (digital terrain model for profiles and cross sections) 
• Incorporate Preliminary City Design Meeting comments 
• Title sheet with Index of Sheets 
• Existing and proposed typical sections 
• Preliminary traffic control sequencing with general traffic control plan layout 
• 60% Completed Plan and Profile Sheets 
• Preliminary design cross sections 

90" Submittal (3-22"JC34" sets, 1-11"JCl7/1 set, and 1- PDF set) 

• Incorporate City review comments from 50% submittal 
• Title Sheet with Index of Sheets 
• Project General Notes 
• existing and proposed typical sections 
• Quantity Summary Sheets (Roadway, driveways, traffic control, striping and SW3P) 
• Traffic Control Plans with Sequence of Construction 



C;vilCorp. LLC Page 4 0/6 

• Overall Project layout Sheet (including survey control data) 
• Roadway Plan and Profile Sheets (including striping details, as necessary) 
• Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plans (SW3P) 
• Miscellaneous Roadwav Detail Sheets (Adjust manholes, pavement junctures, driveways, etc.) 
• Roadway Design Cross section Sheets (100' Intervals) 
• Cost estimate Including concrete pavement alternate bid items 

Cltv Coundl Presentation 

• Develop PowerPoint presentation Including project data to effectively communicate the project 
design to the Mayor, City Manager and City Council 

Final Submittal (3-22",,34" sets, 1-11 "1Cl 1" set, and 1- PDF set) 

• Items Included In the 90% submittal with City Council and City Staff comments addressed 
• Proposal (Notice to Bidders, Instruction and Information to Bidders, Bid Proposal From, Standard 

Form of Agreement, Bond Forms, General Conditions, Special Conditions, and Technical 
Specifications) 

• Updated Cost Estimate 

Bid Phase 

• Attend and facilitate Pre-Bid Meeting 
• Answer questions 
• Issue Addenda and post to ClVeast, if necessary 
• Attend bid opening 
• Tabulate bids 
• Prepare recommendation of bid award 

Construction Phase 

• Provide Addenda posted construction drawings 
• Update final project manual to include: 

o Addenda bound in front 
o Insert signed contracts and bonds 
o Insert contractor's bid form 
o Insert contractor's Insurance 
o Insert geotechnical report 

• Facilitate pre-constructlon meeting and issue contractor's "Notice to Proceed" 
• Respond to RFI's (Requests for Information) 
• Review and approve monthly pay estimates 
• Review and approve change orders 
• Review shop drawings and submittals 
• Attend monthly progress meetings and prepare minutes (9 Months Estimated) 
• Conduct final Inspection and prepare punch list 
• Prepare record as-built drawings and provide the City with 3-full size sets and 2-CD's 



CivilCorp. LLC. PageSof6 

INFORMATION PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF ROSENBERG 

The aty of Rosenberg will provide ClvllCorp with the following Information and assistance. 

1. Survey control monument data, if available 
2. As-Built construction plans, if available 
3. Existing utility plans or other data applicable to the project 
4. Timely review and decisions to maintain project schedule 
5. Traffic data for pavement design and turn lane location analysis 

SERVICES NOT INCLUDED WITHIN THE SCOPE OF SERVICES: 

The following services have not been Included within the above scope of services: 

1. Utility relocation plans 
2. Utility agreements or cost estimates 
3. Right-of-Way Maps 
4. Environmental document preparation 

Civil Corp, LLC could provide these services to the Oty of Rosenberg, if desired. These services would be 
developed under a separate proposal. 

SCHEDULE 
Project development and design will begin upon notice to proceed from the City of Rosenberg anticipated to 
be on January 20, 2015. 

MILESTONE DATE 
• Survey Complete 2/17/15 
• Preliminary Design Mtg 3/3/15 
• 50% Submittal 3/23/15 
• City of Rosenberg Comments 4/1/15 
• 90% Submittal 4/20/15 
• Final Submittal 5/11/15 

*avllCorp is not responsible for delays beyond its control. 

COMPENSATION 
Payment and compensation for the above Scope of Services Is to be on a lump sum basis. CivllCorp will 
prepare monthly Invoices for services rendered. A budget In the amount of $ 177.262.00 Is established for 
this agreement and will not be exceeded without prior authorization by the City of Rosenberg. 

Old Richmond Road and Jennetta Street Reconstruction 

Services 

Surveying 
Geotechnical Investigation 
Engineering 
Project Management 
Construction Phase 
Direct Expenses 
Tota/Fee: 

Cost 

$ 31,313.00 
$ 14,600.00 
$ 90,170.00 
$ 11,400.00 
$ 27,355.00 
$ 2,424.00 
$177,262.00 



CivilCorp, LLC. Page 60/6 

All work will be closelv coordinated with the Cltvof Rosenberg. Thank you for the opportunltv to submit this 
proposal. If you are In agreement with the services and related fee contained In this proposal and wish to 
proceed, please sign on the space provided and return an executed copy to mv attention that will serve as 
the Notice to Proceed. 

If you have any questions or require additional information, please don't hesitate to call me. We are looking 
forward to working with you on this project. 

Very trulv yours, 

ctvllCorp, LtC 

7~(t~'f 
Thomas C. Kuykendall, Jr., PE 
Vice President 

City of Rosenberg 

BV: 

TItle: 

Date: 



FEE SCHEDULE - EXHIBIT D 

PROJECT NAME: OLD RICHMOND ROAD & JENETTA ST 

METHOD OF PAY: LUMP SUM 

PRIME PROVIDER NAME: CMLCORP. LLC 

FEE SUMMARY 

OLD RICHMOND ROAD & JENETTA ST 

1/1512015 

~ •. .. - _ -;rASKS~ " ',: .: .. : .";."': '':: r:~::--:*'CIVILCORpr.LLC1· •.• ~_. -; !'~~~ .• :: .,-::;TERRACONi .. · .• -::: • ~ 
~ "'-..",." """( ..... t.~~"'~-..t.~,.~ ... ~~:'T---~ .... -'f'""'t 

:!y~N~i i $31.313.00 
,~:x __ ... ,~_ ~ ........... --..'. '''-4. 

~...::.i .... ."."'~"--::-. .• .,;r"" ..• ':~~'!7" ... ·r ....... , 

-'GEOTECHNICAL 1 
.... ... ,,-" .. ..,'" ... ,>+:...:~ ... """'" Z~ ."".1-"" ... ,_~ ., ~ .;.... ... .. _ .. 

",.. .~'" "'''''';.. .,7 ..... ..,.,..>~~~·'.~~< ~ 11" ,,:~....,,""'- .... '. 1 
iENGINEERING . ; 
---- _~"<f'~"t ,,~ .... '- ",. ~ ~:t 

$90.170,00 
~ . ..,. ~.,.,..,.. .~"'"~ --".)'"", ... ; .. ,..,:~-~ ... -, ." ....... 

t9.9.t!SI8YPJJ.9~f ; 
........ -.!. ... ;;,. .."" .... ~ ~""""'-"" .. _viIf. 

$27.355.00 

'lP.ROJECr,MANAGEMENl:; 
.c.' .... ~.~-to. *..-rt-·;t ",~~t;HolI.>-,""""~o'. ""'''';·~+w''''' 

$11,400.00 

Direct Ex~n~es $2,4.24.00 

TOTALS $162,662.00 

TOTAL 

PERCENT FEE 91.8% 

1/1512015 

CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE 
SURVEYING % 

ENGINEERING % 
CONSTRUCTION PHASE % 

GEOTECH% 
TOTAL % 

. Page 1 of1 

$14,600.00 

$,14;600:qD' 

$177.262.00 

8.2% 100.0% 
$1.800,000.00 

1.74% 
5.78% 
1.52% 
0.81% 
9.85% 

150115_0Id Richmond Road_Fee Estimate.xlsx 



Attachment A·1 

SCOPE OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE ENGINEER 

Scope of Services to Perform Final Design and 
Prepare Plans, Specifications, and Estimate 

Old Richmond Road from 8th Street to 850' West of Avenue H (Approx. 9600 LF) 
and 

Jennetta Street from Old Richmond Road to Avenue H (Approx.1300 LF) 

GENERAL SCOPE OF PROJECT 

The work to be performed by the Engineer under this contract consists of providing final design 
services for the project, coordination with the City of Rosenberg, and preparation of construction 
documents containing plans, specifications and details pertaining to paving, grading, drainage, 
storm water pollution prevention, pavement markings, demolition, sequence of construction and 
traffic control plans, construction cost estimate and time of construction estimate. Topographic 
survey and Geotechnical investigation will also be provided by the Engineer. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: OLD RICHMOND ROAD AND JENNETTA STREET 
RECONSTRUCTION 

The Old Richmond Road reconstruction will extend from 8th Street to 850' West of Avenue H 
(US Highway gOA). The Jennetta Street reconstruction will extend from Old Richmond Road to 
Avenue H (US Highway gOA). The project scope will be a two-lane asphalt road with roadside 
ditches. Additional pavement width for adding left tum lanes at select locations along Old 
Richmond Road will be evaluated during design. Plans will be prepared In accordance with the 
City of Rosenberg Design Standards. 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The Engineer will provide the following surveying, geotechnical Investigation, engineering, 
construction and project management services for the project: 

I. Surveying 

A. Tie to City of Rosenberg or TxDOT control monumentation for horizontal and 
vertical controls, if available. 

B. Set horizontal and vertical control near project site 

C. Activate One-Call and have existing utilities marked 

D. Perform surveying to facilitate Engineering including: 
• Topographic survey along Old Richmond Road and Jennetta Street to 

include existing features (driveways, side streets, curbs, gutters, signs, 
culverts, inlets, utilities, power poles, guy wires, and pavement markings) 

• Tie utility markings provided by utility owners 
• Tie soil boring locations 

1 



E. Research and establish existing right-of-way 

F. Perform all work in accordance with any applicable standards 

U. Geotechnical Investigation (Provided by Terracon Consultants, Inc.) 

A. See "Attachment B-

Ill. Engineering 

A. Obtain and review existing information. 

B. Prepare Title Sheet for Project. 

C. Prepare Index of Sheets (Show on Title Sheet). 

D. Prepare General Notes sheet and include notes applicable for grading, paving, 
drainage, and utilities. 

E. Prepare existing typical section of Old Richmond Road and Jennetta Street. 

F. Prepare proposed typical sections of Old Richmond Road and Jennetta Street 
that show lane configuration and pavement structure. 

G. Prepare quantity summary sheets for the project. 

H. Prepare sequence of construction with general traffic control plan layout. Identify 
and modify as necessary standard construction and barricade detail sheets. 

I. Prepare Overall Project Layout (1" = 400' - Full Size). 

J. Prepare roadway plan and profile sheets for Old Richmond Road and Jennetta 
Street (1" = 40' H, 1- = 4' V - Full Size) showing horizontal and vertical geometric 
designs. 

K. Prepare storm water pollution prevention plans (SW3P) (1" = 40' double bank -
Full Size) showing temporary control measures. 

L. Develop striping details (Show on roadway plan and profile sheets). 

M. Develop miscellaneoUS detail sheets. 

N. Develop earthwork cross-sections (1" = 40' H, 1" = 10' V) showing existing and 
proposed roadway sections at 100' intervals for the proposed roadway. 

O. Compute and tabulate construction quantities and prepare estimate. Estimates 
will be prepared and submitted with each review submittal at 30%, 60%. 90% 
and 100%. 

P. Prepare construction bid package to include Notice to Bidders, Instruction and 
Information to Bidders. Bid Proposal Form, Standard Form of Agreement, Bond 
Forms, General Conditions, Special Conditions if any, Technical SpeCifications 
and Construction Plans. in accordance with City of Rosenberg standards. 

2 



IV. Construction 

A. Complete Bid Tabulation and Engineers Recommendation. 

B. Address Request for Information (RFI) from Contractor. 

C. Review Change Orders. 

V. Project Management 

VI. 

A. Develop and Maintain 

1. Project Schedules 
2. Budgets 
3. Monthly Progress Reports and Invoices 

B. Meet with the City staff on a regular basis to review project progress. 

C. Coordinate and review the work produced to comply with the City and County 
policies and procedures, and to deliver that work on time. Comply with all 
applicable laws, ordinances and codes of the State and local governments. 

D. Prepare Presentation (1 estimated) for the project to be presented to City 
Council. 

E. Field Reconnaissance. Travel to the project to inspect features along and 
adjacent to the roadway to assist in making decisions concerning roadway 
design, drainage design, sequence of construction, and ROW acquisition. 

F. Develop and implement Quality Control and Quality Assurance program. 

Direct Expenses 

A. Photocopies 

B. Deliveries 

C. Mileage 

D. GPS Equipment 

INFORMATION PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF ROSENBERG 

The City of Rosenberg will provide Civil Corp with the following information and assistance: 

1. Survey control monument data, if available. 

2. As-Built construction plans, if available. 

3. Existing utility plans or other data applicable to the project. 

4. Timely review and decisions to maintain the project schedule. 

5. Traffic data for pavement design and tum lane location analysis 

3 



SERVICES NOT INCLUDED WITHIN THE SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The following services have not been included within the above scope of services: 

1. Utility relocation plans. 

2. Utility agreements or cost estimates. 

3. Right-of-Way maps. 

4. Environmental document preparation. 

CivilCorp. LLC could provide these services to the City of Rosenberg. if desired. These 
services would be developed under a separate proposal. 

4 



ATTACHMENT B 
lrerracDn December 12,2014 

CivilCorp, LlC 
2825 Wilcrest Dr., Suite 460 
Houston, TX 77042 

Attn: Thomas C. Kuykendall, Jr., PE 
Vice President 

Re: Cost Estimate for Geotechnical Engineering Services 
Old Richmond Road and Jennetta Street Reconstruction 
Between 8th Street and Avenue H 
Richmond, Texas 
Terracen Document No. P92142275 

Dear Mr. Kuykendall: 

Terracon Consultants, Inc. (Terracon) understands we have been selected based on 
qualifications to provide geotechnical engineering services for the above referenced project in 
Houston, Texas. This letter outlines our understanding of the scope of services to be performed 
by Terracon for this project and provides an estimate of the cost of our services. 

1.0 PROJECT INFORMATION 

Item 

Site location 

Existing conditions 1 

Proposed Improvements 1 

Planned traffic loading 

1. Information provided by CivllCorp, LLC. 

Description 

The proposed Old Richmond Road reconstruction is 
between 8th Street and approximately 800 feet from 
Avenue H and the proposed Jennetta Street 
reconstruction Is between Old Richmond Road and 
Avenue G In Richmond, Texas. 

Old Richmond Road and Jennetta Street consist of 
asphaltic-concrete pavement. 

• Reconstruction of approximately 9,700 linear feet 
of Old Richmond Road and 1,300 linear feet of 
Jennetta Street. 

• Typical pavement section planned Is 2-inch hot
mixed asphaltic concrete (HMAC), prime coat, 
limeslone base, and chemically treated subfrade. 

No traffic information was provided at the time of this 
cost estimate. 

Terracon Consultanls, Inc. 11555 Clay Road, Suite 100 Houston, Texas 77043 Regislrallon No. F·3273 
P (713) 690·8989 F (713) 690·8787 terracon.com 

Ellvlron,,,e .. ll1l IllI F~cilit;os C GODlecllnicol CI r.\I\tedllls 
. . . , 



Cost Estimate for Geotechnical Engineering Services 
Old Richmond Road and Jennetta Street Reconstruction. Richmond, Texas 
December 12,2014 a Terracon Document No. P92142275 
Page 2 

lrerracan 

If our understanding of the project is not accurate, please let us know so that we may adjust our 
scope of services and estimated cost, if necessary. 

2.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES 

A brief summary of the services to be provided by Terracon is presented in the fol/owing 
paragraphs. 

Field Program. The field program is planned to consist of drilling 25 test borings to depths of 5 
feet along the alignment of the proposed roadway reconstruction. The total drilling footage Is 
planned to be 125 feet. 

An experienced Terracon geotechnical technician will be assigned to the field program for this 
project. Our technician will be on-site with the drilling crew to coordinate the drilling activities, 
collect soil samples, and log each boring. 

The borings will be located in the field by using hand measuring equipment and estimating 
angles and distances from and on-site features shown on the proposed boring plan with the 
assistance of hand-held GPS devices which are capable of locating the exploration points with 
an accuracy of about ± 25 feet. Therefore, the layout of the borings and test locations will be 
approximate. Boring depths will be measured from existing grade (top of pavement). 

Traffic control consisting of cones. signs, and flaggers is planned for our field program at the 
boring locations along the existing roadway. The drilling services for this project will be 
performed by a drilling subcontractor or Terracon's in-house drillers. During drilling, soil samples 
will generally be collected utilizing either open-tube samplers or the Standard Penetration Test. 
Once the samples have been collected and classified in the field, they will be properly prepared 
and placed In appropriate sample containers for transport to our laboratory. Upon completion of 
our field program. the borings will be backfilled with soli cuttings and patched at the surface with 
an asphalt product. 

This document assumes that the site can be accessed with standard truck-mounted drilling 
equipment (Monday through Friday) and does not include services associated with surveying of 
boring locations, location of underground utilities, or use of special equipment for unusually soft 
or wet surface conditions. If such conditions are known to exist on the site, Terracon should be 
notified so that we may adjust our scope of services and estimated fees. if necessary. 

Responsive _ Resourceful 0 Reliable 



Cost Estimate for Geotechnical Engineering Services 
Old Richmond Road and Jennetta Street Reconstruction II Richmond. Texas 
December 12, 2014$ D Terracon DocUment No. P92142275 
Page 3 

lrerracan 

Terracon will notify Texas811, a free utility location service, prior to our drilling program to help 
locale utilities within dedicated public utility easements. If underground utilities are known to 
exist on the site, Terracon should be notified so that we may review utility plans to help avoid 
the existing lines. Terracon cannot be responsible for utilities for which we are unaware or that 
are improperly located in the field. 

Laboratory Testing. The sample classifications will be reviewed and a laboratory testing 
program will be assigned which will be specific to the project requirements and the subsurface 
conditions observed. The testing program could include, but may not be limited to, moisture 
conlents, unit dry weights, Atterberg Limits, compressive strength tests, and grain-size 
analyses. 

Engineering Report. The results of our field and laboratory programs will be evaluated by a 
professional geotechnical engineer licensed in the State of Texas. Based on the results of our 
evaluation, an engineering report will be prepared which details the results of the testing 
performed and provides Boring Logs and a Boring Location Plan. The report will also provide 
geotechnical engineering recommendations which will address the following: 

a Site and subgrade preparation; and 
• Pavement design guidelines. 

Schedule. We can initiate our field program within about seven to nine days following 
authorization to proceed, if site access and weather conditions will permit We anticipate 
completion of our services and submittal of our final report within about three weeks after 
completion of our field services. In situations where information is needed prior to submittal of 
our report. we can provide verbal information or recommendations for specific project 
requirements directly after we have completed our field and laboratory programs. 

3.0 COMPENSATION 

For the scope of services outlined in this document, we estimate a cost of $14,600. This cost 
includes $1,000 per day for traffic control (Assuming two days of drilling). The cost of our. 
services will not exceed these amounts without prior approval of the client 

Additional consultation (such as attendance on a project conference cali, engineering analysis, 
etc.) requested will be performed on a time-and-materials basis according to the unit rates 
provided below. The fee to provide additional consultation services will be in excess of the 
above provided fee to complete the geotechnical services and will not be incurred without prior 
approval of the client. 

Responsive 0 Resourceful D Reliable 



Cost Estimate for Geotechnical Engineering Services 
Old Richmond Road and Jennetta Street Reconstruction. Richmond. Texas 
December 12,2014. Terracon Document No. P92142275 
Page 4 

Unit Rates - . 

Desc~iptfon 

Principal -_ ... 
Project Manager 

Project Engineer 
--

Staff Engineer 

Geotechnical technician with truck, portal to portal 

Clerical Staff 

4.0 AUTHORIZATION 

1rerracan 

Unit f Unit 
Price 

Hour $180 

Hour $150 

Hour $135 

Hour $110 

Hour $80 
-
Hour I $50 

., 

Environmental Considerations. In an effort to reduce the potential for cross-contamination of 
subsurface media and exposure of site workers to contaminants that might be present at the 
site, Terracon requests that prior to mobilization to the site, the Client inform Terracon of known 
or suspected environmental conditions at or adjacent to the site. If adverse environmental 
conditions are present, additional expenses may be necessary to properly protect site workers 
and abandon borings that penetrate affected groundwater-bearing units. 

If Terracon is not informed of potentially adverse environmental conditions prior to the 
geotechnical services, Terracon will not be responsible for cross-contamination of groundwater 
aquifers. soil contamination. or any modification to the environmental conditions to the site that 
may occur during our geotechnical services. The geotechnical scope of services described 
above is based on our assumption that the site does not pose environmental risks to the 
personnel conducting the geotechnical exploration services. 

Agreement for Services. We have included a copy of our -Agreement for Services.", If you 
agree to the conditions set forth in this document. please sign and return a copy of the 
accompanying Agreement for Services and an Access Agreement, if applicable, to our office. If 
you have any questions regarding the terms and conditions in the agreement, or any other 
aspect of this document, please feel free to contact us. 

Responsive. Resourceful _ Reliable 



Cost Estimate for Geotechnical Engineering Services 
Old Richmond Road and Jennetta Street Reconstruction a Richmond, Texas 
December 12, 2014 D Terracon Document No. P92142275 

lli!rracan 
Page 5 

We appreciate the opportunity to provide this cost estimate and look forward to the opportunity 
of working with you. 

Sincerely, 
Terracon Consultants, Inc. 
(Texas Firm Registration No, F-3272) 

~~---
Brett A. Pope, P.E. 
Project Manager 

~<-~ 
Todd E. Swoboda, P.E. 
Geotechnical Services Manager 

Attachment: Agreement for Services 

Responsive. Resourceful. Reliable 

~~--
Lauren Williamson I P .E. 
Project Engineer 



lrerracan 
Reference Number: P92142275 

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 

This AGREEMENT is between Ch111Corp. LLC ("Client") and Terracon Consultants, Inc. ('Consultant1 for Services to be provided by Consultant for Client 
on Ihe Old RIchmond Road and Jennetta Street Reconstruction project ("Project), as described In lhe Project Information section of Consultant's Proposal 
dated December 12. 2014 rProposalj unless the Project is olherwise described in exhibit A to this Agreement (which section or exhibit Is Incorporated Into 
this Agreement). 

1. Scope of Services. The scope of Consultant's services is described In the Scope of Services sectlon of the Proposal rservlces"l, unless Services 
are otherwise described In ElChlblt B Ie this Agreement (which section or elChlblt Is Incorporated Inlo this Agreement). Portions of Ihe Services may be 
subcontracled. If Terracon subcontracts Ie other inolViduals or companies, then Terracon will collect from Client on the subcontractors' behalf. 
Consullanrs Services do not Include the investigation or detection of, not do recommendations In Consultant's reports address 
the presence or prevenlion of biological pollutants (e.g .• mold, fungi, bacteria. Viruses. or their byproducts) or occupant safety Issues, such as 
vulnerability Ie natural disasters. terrorism, or VIolence. If Servlces Include purchase of software, Client WIn execule a separate software license 
agreement. Consultant's find:ngs. opinions, and reCommendations are based solely upon data and Information obtained by and furnished Ie Consultant 
at the time of the Services. 

2. Acceptancel Termination. ClIent agrees thai execution of this Agreement Is a material elemen! of the consideration ConSUltant requires to 
execute the SerVlc::es, and If Services are Initiated by Consultant prior Ie execution of this Agreement 8S an accommodation for Client at Client's 
request. both parties shall consider thai commencement of Services constitutes formal acceptance of an tenns and conditions of this Agreement. 
Additional tenns and conditipns may be added or changed only by written amendment to this Agreement signed by both parties. In the event Client 
uses e purchase order or other form to administer this Agreement, the use of such form shall be for convenience purposes only and any addillonal or 
conflicting tenns II conlains are stricken, This Agreement shall not be assigned by either party without prior written consent of the other party. Either 
party may terminate this Agreement Dr the Services upon written notice to Ihe other. In such case, Consultant shall be paid costs Incurred and fees 
eamed to Ihe date of termination plus reasonable costs of closing the projec::l 

3. Chang a Ordors. Client may request changes to the scope of Servk;es by altering or adding Ie the SerVices to be performed. If Client so requests. 
Consultant wl1l retum to ClIent a statement (or supplemental proposal) of the change seltlng forth an adjustment to the Services and fees for the 
requested changes. Following Client's review, Client shall provide written acceptanc::a If Client does not follow these procedures. but Instead directs, 
authorizes, or permits Consultant Ie perform changed or additional work, the SerVices are changed accordingly and Consultant will be paid for this work 
according to the fees stated or Its current fee schedule. If project conditions change materiaDy from those observed at the slle or described 10 
Consultant at the time of proposal. Consultant Is entiUed to a change order equitably adjusting Its Services and fee. 

4. Compensation and Terms of Payment. Crten! shall pay compensation for the SerVices performed at the fees stated In the Compensation 
section of the Proposal unless fees are otherwise stated In Exhlblt C to this Agreement (which section or Exhibit is Incorporated into this Agreement). If 
not stated In either, fees will be according to Consultant's current fee schedule. Fee schedules are valid for the calendar year In which they are Issued. 
Consultant may Invoice Client at least monthly and payment Is due upon receipt of invoice. Client shall notify ConSUltant In writing, at the eddress 
below, within 15 days of the date of the Invoice if Client objects Ie any portion of the charges on the invoice, and shall prompUy pay the undisputed I 
portion. Client shall pay a finance fee of 1.5% per month. but not exceeding the maximum rate allowed by law, for all unpaid amounts 30 days or older. 
Client agrees to pay an conection·relatecl costs that Consultant Incurs. Including attorney fees. Consultant may suspend Services for lack of Ifmely 
payment. It Is tha responslblnty of CUent to determine whether federal, state, or local prevall~ng wage requirements apply and to notify Consultant If J 
prevailing wages apply. If It Is later determined thaI prevailing wages apply, and Consultant was not previously notified by Client, Client agrees 10 pay I 
the prevailing wage from that point forward, as weltas a retroactive payment edjustment to bring previously paid amounts In line with prevaHing wages. 
Client also agrees Ie defend, Indemnify, and hold harmless Consultant from any alleged violations made by any governmental agency regulating ! 
prevailing wage activity for faiHng 10 pay prevailing wages, Including the payment of any fines or penalties. 

5. Third Party Reliance. This Agreement and the Services proVided are for Consultant and Client's sole benefit and exclusive use with no third party 
beneficiaries Inlended. Reliance upon the Services and any work product Is limited to Clienl, and Is not Intended for third parties. For a Umlted lime 
period not 10 exceed three months from the date of the report. ConSUltant will issue additional reports Ie others agreed upon with Client, however Client 
understands that such reUance wiD not be granted unUi those parties sign and return Consultant's reliance agreement and Consultant receives the 
agreed-upon reRance fee. 

6. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. CLIENT AND CONSULTANT HAVE EVALUATED THE RISKS AND REWARDS ASSOCIATED WITH THIS 
PROJECT, INCLUDING CONSULTANrS FEE RELATIVE TO THE RISKS ASSUMED, AND AGREE TO ALLOCATE CERTAIN OF THE 
ASSOCIATED RISKS. TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE TOTAL AGGREGATE LIABILITY OF CONSULTANT (AND ITS 
RELATED CORPORATIONS AND EMPLOYEES) TO CLIENT ANI? THIRD PARTIES GRANTED REUANCE IS LIMITED TO 
THE GREATER OF $50,000 OR CONSULTANT'S FEE, FOR ANY AND ALL INJURIES, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, LOSSES, OR EXPENSES 
(INCLUDING ATTORNEY AND EXPERT FEES) ARISING OUT OF CONSULTANT'S SERVICES OR THIS AGREEMENT. UPON WRITTEN 
REQUEST FROM CLIENT, CONSULTANT MAY NEGOTIATE A HIGHER LIMITATION FOR ADOITIONAL CONSIDERATION. THIS UMITATION 
SHALL APPLY REGARDLESS OF AVAILABLE INSURANCE COVERAGE, CAUSE(S) OR THE THEORY OF LlABIUTY, INCLUDING 
NEGUGENCE,INDEMNITY, OR OTHER RECOVERY. THIS UMITATION SHALL NOT APPLY TO THE EXTENT THE DAMAGE IS PAID UNDER 
CONSULTANT'S COMMERCIAL GENERAL LlABIUTV POUey. 

7. Indemnity/Statute of Limitations. Consultant and Client shan Indemnify and hold harmless ",e other and their respective employees from and 
against legal liability for claims, losses, damages, and expenses to tha extent such claims, losses, damages, or expenses are legally delem1ined to be 
caused by their negligent acts, errors, or omissions. In the event such claims. losses, damages, or expenses are legally determined 10 be caused by the 
Joint or c::cncurrent negligence of Consultant and Clienl, they shan be bome by each party In proportion to its own negligence under comparalJve fault 
principles. Neither party shall have a duty 10 defend the other party, and no duty 10 defend Is hereby created by this Indemnity proVision and such duty 
Is expUcl1ly waived under this Agreement. Causes of aellon arising oul of Consultant's services or this Agreement regardless of cause{s) or the theo!}, 
of liability, Indudlng negligence, Indemnity or other recovesy shall be deel]1ed to have accrued and the applicable statute of Umlta!lons shall commence 
to run not laler than the date of Consultanrs substantial completion of services on the project. 

8. Wananty. Consultant WIn perform the SerVIces In a manner consistent wllh that level of care and skiD ordinarily exercised by members of the 
profession currently practicing under similar condiUons In the same locale. CONSULTANT MAKES NO WARRANTIES OR GUARANTEES, EXPRESS 
OR IMPUED, RELATING TO CONSULTANT'S SERVICES AND CONSULTANT DISCLAIMS ANY IMPUED WARRANTIES OR WARRANTIES 
IMPOSED BY LAW,INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 

Page 10(2 Rev. 8-10 



lrerracan 
9. Insurance. Consultant represents that it now carries, and wiD continue to carry: (I) workers' compensation Insurance In accordance with the laws of 

the states having Jurisdlctlon over Consultant's employees who are engaged in the Services, and employer's liability Insurance (S1,OOO,OOO); (iI) 
commercial general liability insurance ($1.000,000 oec I 52,000,000 agg); (III) automobile liability Insurance ($1,000,000 B.I. and P.O. c:omblned single 
limit); and (Iv) profess/onall/abillty Insurance ($1,000,000 dalm lagg). Certificales of Insurance will be provided upon request. Client and Consullant 
shall waive subrogation against the other party on aD general liability and property coverage. 

10. CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES. NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER FOR LOSS OF PROFITS OR REVENUE; LOSS OF 
USE OR OPPORTUMlY; LOSS OF GOOD WILL; COST OF SUBSTITUTE FACILITIeS, GOODS, OR SERVICES: COST OF CAPITAL; OR FOR 
ANY SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAl, INDIRECT. PUNITIVE, OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES. 

11. Dispute Resolution. Cllenl shall not be enDUed 10 assert a Claim against Consullant based on any theory of professional negligence unless and 
until Client has obtained the written opinion from a registered. Independent, and reputable engineer. architect, or geologlsl that Consultant has viola led 
the standard of care applicable to Consultant's perfonnence of the Services. Client shall provide this opln~on to Consultant and the parties shan 
endeavor to resolve the dispute within 30 days. after which ClIent may pursue Its remedies at law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed 
according to Kansas law. 

12. Subsurface Explorations. Subsurface condlUons throughout the site may vary from those depicted on logs of discrete borings. test pits, or other 
exploratory services. Client understands Consultant's layout of boring and lest locations Is approximate and that Consultant may deviate a reasonable 
dlslance from those locations. Consultant wDl take reasonable precautions to reduce damage to the site when perfonning Services; however, eDent 
accepts that Invasive services such as dtlUlng or sampling may damage or aHer the slle. Site restoration Is nol provided unless specifically Included In 
the Services. 

13. Testing and Observations. Client understands Chat testing and observation are discrete sampling procedures, and that such procedures Indlcale 
condilions only at the depths. locations. and limes the procedures were performed. Consultant will provide test results and opinions based on tests and 
fl8id observations only for the work tested. Client understands that tesllng and observation are not continuous or exhausUve. and are conducted to 
reduce· not eliminate· projact rfsk. Client agrees to the level or amount of lesting perfonned and the associated risk. Client Is responsible (even If 
delegated to contractor) for requesting sefVices, and notifying and scheduling Consullant so Consultant can perform these Services. Consultant Is nol 
responsible for damages caused by servtces nOI pert'ormed due to a failure to request or schedule Consultant's services. Consultant shall not be 
responsible for the quar.1y and completeness of Client's contractor's work or their adherence to the project documenls, and Consunant's performance of 
tesUng and observation services shall not rerteve Client's contractor In any way from its responsibility for defects discovered in its work, or create a 
warranty or guaranlee. Consultant will not supervise or direct the work performed by Clienrs contractor Ot its subcontractors and Is not responsible for 
their means and methods. 

14. Sample Disposition, Affected Materials, and Indemnity. Samples are consumed In testing or cflSpOSed of upon c:ompleUon of tests (unless 
stated otherwise In the Services). Client shan furnish or cause to be fumlshed to Consultant aU documents and Infonnation known or available to Client 
that relale 10 Ihe IdenUty, location. quantity, nature, or characterisUc of any hazardous waste, toxic. radioactive. or contaminated materials ,Affected 
Materials") at or neer the slle. and shan Immedlalely transmit new, updated, or revised Infonnation as It becomes available. Client agrees that 
Consultant Is not responsible for the disposition of Affected Material unless specifICally provided In the Services. end thet Client Is responsible for 
dlrecllng such dlsposillOn. In the event that test samples obtained during the perfonnance of SefVices (i) contain substances hazardous to health, 
safety, or the environment, or (II) equipment used during the Services cannot reasonably be decontamlnaled. CDent shall sign documentation (if 
necessary) required to ensure the equipment and/or samples are transported and disposed of properly. and agrees 10 pay Consultant the fair market 
value of this equipment and reasonable disposal cosls. In no evenl shall Consultant be required to sign e hazardoU$ waste menlfest or take title to any 
Affected Materials. eDent shall have the obligation to make all spill or release notlflcaUons 10 appropriate governmental agencies. The ClIent agrees that 
Consultant neither aeated nor contributed to the aeatlon or existence of any Affected Materials conditions at the site. Aaxlrdingly, ClIent waives any claim 
against Consultant and agrees to indemnlly and save Consultant, Its agenls. employee's, and related companies harmless from any clam. liability or defense 
cost, Indud'1l19 attomey and expert fees, for Injury or loss sustained by any party from such exposures allegedly arising out or Consultant's non-negRgent 
perfonnance of services hereunder. or lot any dalms against Consultanl as a generator. dsposer. or arranger of Affected Malerials under federal. state, or 
local law or ordinance. 

15. Ownership of Documents. Work product. such as reports. logs, data, notes, or calculations. p!'epared by ConSUltant shall remain Consultant's 
property. Proprietary concepls, systems. and Ideas developed during performance of the Services shall remaln the sole property of Consultant. Files 
shall be maintained In general ac:cordance with Consunant's document retention policies and practices. 

16. Utilities. CRent shan provide the Iocalion and/or arrange for the marking of private utilities and SUbterranean structures. Consullant shall take 
reasonable precautions to avoid damage or Injury to sublerranean structures or utilities. Consultant shall not be responsible for damage to 
subterranean structures or utilities thai are not called to Consultant's attention, are not correctly marked, Including by a utility locate service. or are 
Incorreclly shown on the plans furnished to ConsultanL 

17. Site Acc ... and Safety. Client shall secure an necessary site related approvals, pennlts. licenses, and consents necessary to commence and 
complete the Services and wlR execute any necessary site access agreement. Consultant will be responsible for supervision end site safety measures 
for Its own employees, but shall not be responsible for the supervision or heallh end safety precautions for any other parties, including Client, Client's 
contractors, subcontractors, or other parties present at the site, 

Consultant Terracon Consultants, Inc. 
By: 1Z;#t'# Date: 1211212014 

NameITIUe: Brett Pope, P.E. 
ProSect Engineer 

Address: 11555 Clay Road, Suite 100 
Houston Texas 77043 
Phone: 713.690.B989 Fax: 713.690.8787 

Page 2 of2 

Client CIvRCorp, LLC 
By: ___________ Dale: 

NamefTitle: 

Address: 

Phone: Fax: ------------- ------------------
Reference Number: P92142275 

Rev. 8-10 



cynthias
Rectangle



cynthias
Rectangle



 
PAGE 5 of 6 * ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION MEETING MINUTES * 

January 08, 2015 
 

 Director Peña stated the County is asking for $75,000 initial investment and RDC already budgeted $80,000 
for this project. 

 Director Peña asked if there is a problem with a certain crossing, how the contract would be amended. 
 Ms. Shelton stated it could not be changed in a day, but would go through the proper processes. 

 
Action:  Director Bailey moved and Director McConathy seconded a motion to authorize the expenditure of $75,000 for 
bus services in Rosenberg and submit the funding agreement/contract to RDC attorney for review. The motion carried 
by a unanimous vote of those present. 
 

9.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS CITY SIDEWALK PLAN, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY. 
Executive Summary: This item has been added to provide the Board an opportunity to discuss potential sidewalk 
projects in the City of Rosenberg, and to take action if necessary. 

 
Key discussion points: 

 Mr. Tanner explained the City has a sidewalk plan that governs where developers have to install sidewalks. 
The City recently adopted a sidewalk repair and maintenance program. The City does not have funding for 
installing new sidewalks if not installed by developers. RDC approached the City a few months ago with 
questions about installing sidewalks and make connections in the City. The City further looked at areas that 
would benefit commercial development in existing business areas and make those connections. Generally 
speaking, the cost is approximately $25 per linear foot or $130,000 per mile of sidewalk. 

 Director McConathy asked if this price includes just one side of the street, not both sides and Mr. Tanner 
confirmed the cost is for just one side of the street. 

 Director Peña asked if there is a preference for the north versus the south side of the street for planned 
sidewalk connections. Mr. Tanner stated installation is based on the plan the City has already made. 

 Director McConathy asked what the two different colors represented on the plan. Mr. Tanner stated the purple 
is sidewalks already funded.  

 Director Peña asked about Avenue G and Mr. Tanner reported Avenue G falls under our sidewalk repair 
program already funded. 

 Mr. Malik reminded the Board that they had discussed these areas, and the Board is interested in funding new 
sidewalks in commercial areas. He and Mr. Tanner had discussed possible areas. 

 Director McConathy asked Mr. Tanner to prepare a proposal regarding businesses coming in and bring the 
cost to that proposal back to the Board for funding sidewalks in commercial areas. 

 Mr. Tanner said the projects would be based on a possible funding amount. 
 Vice President Scopel asked Mr. Tanner to mark those individual areas with a cost and to bring that plan back 

when President Knesek is able to attend the Board meeting. 
 
No action was taken. 
 

10.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS OLD RICHMOND ROAD AND JENNETTA STREET RECONSTRUCTION, AND TAKE 
ACTION AS NECESSARY. 
Executive Summary: This item was added by RDC Director Jimmie Peña for consideration of RDC funding for the 
reconstruction of Old Richmond Road. The project was included in the City of Rosenberg FY2014 Capital Improvement 
Project list. The FY2014 Capital Improvement Project list was approved by City Council on September 17, 2013. On 
October 15, 2013, City Council approved Resolution No. R-1705, which approved the reconstruction of Old Richmond 
Road and Jennetta Street, including necessary drainage improvements with the participation of Fort Bend County 
Road and Bridge. 
 
Key discussion points: 

 City Manager Gracia briefed the Board that in 2014 City Council approved $500,000 for improvements. To 
date, the City has spent $143,000 on an engineering study and also completed some drainage work. The City 
will need an alternative route to get people from point A to point B. It can and will be a major corridor for 
people driving through Rosenberg and brings people into the Historic Downtown District. 

 Director Bailey pointed out as she was reading through minutes from previous City Council meetings, the 
question was asked if there was funding for this road, and the answer was always yes. 

 Director Peña stated the $500,000 was funded for the engineering study only. The City used the money to 
repair the road.  

 Director McConathy asked if the engineering study addresses the long term drainage issues. 
 Director Bailey stated it seems like this is a City or a bond issue, not an RDC funding issue. 
 Director Bailey asked if the $500,000 budgeted will go for the engineering study.  
 Mr. Gracia reported $143,000 was for the engineering study, some of the funds were spent on drainage work 

that was needed, and in order to complete the project the City needs $1,500,000. 
 Vice President Scopel asked about the funding possibility for RDC for this project. Ms. Vasut said at this time, 

RDC would not have to go into additional debt to fund this project. The entire project was going to be a part of 
the bond election, but there was no bond election. The City does not have the $1,500,000 at this time for this 
project, and in order to move the project more quickly, it was brought to RDC to request funding.  

 Mr. Malik pointed out with the Paragon project and the $4,750,000 with completion of that, RDC has $100,000 
to $200,000 wiggle room in the budget to avoid additional debt. 

cynthias
Rectangle



 
PAGE 6 of 6 * ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION MEETING MINUTES * 

January 08, 2015 
 

 Director Bailey said with One-Way Pairs due to start, Old Richmond Road is going to have to be used to offset 
traffic from the construction area. She had a concern with the two projects running simultaneously. 

 Director McConathy said the One-Way Pairs project is probably a year away from starting. 
 Director Peña reported the City Council is going to do everything they can to stop One-Way Pairs from 

starting. 
 
No action was taken. 
 

11.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS SECTION 551.041 OF THE TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT – NOTICE OF MEETING 
REQUIRED AS IT RELATES TO DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS BEING REMOVED FROM MEETING AGENDAS, 
AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY.  
Executive Summary: This item has been included to provide the Economic Development Director the opportunity to 
update the Board on the removal of departmental reports from meeting agendas as per Section 551.041 of the Texas 
Open Meeting Act. 
 
Key discussion points: 

 Mr. Malik explained that some City staff members attended a Texas Municipal League workshop where it was 
strongly suggested that Directors’ reports were not providing sufficient notice to the public. It was encouraged 
that we no longer continue the practice of presenting Director Reports as an agenda item. In trying to come up 
with alternatives, Economic Development staff has been sending weekly updates to the Board through an 
email. Staff plans to formalize that and once a month email a detailed list to the Board and if there are any 
project updates or items you wish to discuss further, these items can be added to the agenda. 

 Director McConathy asked if this also includes the communications report as well. Mr. Malik confirmed the 
communications report was removed as well. 

 
No action was taken. 

 
12.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY.

Executive Summary: This item provides the Rosenberg Development Corporation Board the opportunity to request 
future agenda items. 
 
Key discussion points: 

 City Sidewalk Plan 
 Old Richmond and Jennetta Road 
 Regina Morales, Central Fort Bend Chamber – Score Program 
 University of Houston group for SBA loans 
 Fort Bend Transit update 

 
No action was taken. 
 

13. ANNOUNCEMENTS. 
 

 Livable Centers workshop next Wednesday from 6 – 8 p.m. at the Civic Center 
 Old Ice House up on Avenue I now has the Hill Ice House name on it.  
 The Hill on 359 is now a Resale Shop 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT. 

 
Action:  Director McConathy moved and Director Garcia seconded a motion to adjourn the RDC Board Meeting. The 
motion carried by a unanimous vote of those present.  The meeting adjourned at 6:25 p.m. 

 
        

 
 
________________________________ 
Cynthia Sullivan 
Secretary II 

 
 
RDC Minute Attachment: 
  

1. Fort Bend Transportation Bus Route 

cynthias
Rectangle



    
  COMMUNICATION FORM 
 
                   March 12, 2015 
 
ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

9 City of Rosenberg Sidewalk Plan 

ITEM/MOTION 

Review and discuss City Sidewalk Plan Update, and take action as necessary. 

APPROVAL SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

     
SUBMITTED BY : 
 

 
 
Randall Malik 
Executive Director 
 

 
1) Sidewalk Proposal for Community 

Connectivity including costs 
 

2) 2013 Economic Development Handbook 
Excerpt – Infrastructural Project 
Improvements which promote or develop 
new or expanded business enterprises 
 

3) RDC 01-08-15 Meeting Minute Excerpt 
 

4) RDC 02-12-15 Meeting Minute Excerpt 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This agenda item was requested by the RDC Board at the February RDC Meeting. The board requested 
that staff update the map to provide anticipated cost figures of each proposed sidewalk segment and 
to recommend the amount of sidewalk costs to be included in the Fiscal Year 16 Budget.  On the next 
page is the sidewalk map with cost figures. Below, are the costs associated with the two highest sidewalk 
segments: 

Priority #1: Reading Road Segment - estimated cost $33,982.50. 

Priority #2: Town Center Boulevard - estimated cost of $60,892.50 

Total Cost: $94,875 

 

 



!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!! !!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!!

!!!!!!!!

Historic Downtown

Brazos River

Future Klauke Rd Extension

High School

Multi-School Complex

Major Retail Center

College Complex

Major Retail Center

Elementry School

Middle School

Travis Park

Post Office

City Hall

Elementry School

Civic Center

Pharmacy

Police Department

Fire Station No 2

$60,892.50

$33,982.50

PERSIMMON
CLEISTES

DEL WEBB

H

N

F

G

1ST

D

L

R

J

4TH

E

P
O

A

BRYAN

C

B

6TH

8TH

7TH

5TH

LO
UI

SE
K

LA
NE

AIRPORT

SPA
CE

K

MONS

B F
 TE

RR
Y

M

WARD

LAMAR

RA
DI

O

2ND

RICE

JONES

MUSTANG

OLD RICHMOND

AL
AM

O

REESE

VIS
TA

GOLFVIEW

LONG

RE
AD

IN
G

RIVER

TIMBER

CO
LE

JUNKER

3RD

DAMON

PAR

MILLIE

MEADOW

SALLY ANNE

FRANCES

LINDSEY

PARROTT

COM MER CIAL

WI LS ON

TOBOLA
LA

RK

CAY

LA
ZY

HOMESTEAD
GR

AE
BE

R

DOWLING

WALNUT

PISC
ES

BERNIE

AUSTIN

S

DIV
IN

RA
VE

N

LEAMAN LORY

RYCHLIK

BROOKS

LAWRENCE

STONERIDGE

HERNDON

SPRUCE

WALID

RIPPLE CREEK

DAVIS

DAVID

WALENTA

PARMA

HE
MPL

E

FAIRGROUNDS
MULCAHY

COTTER

DANZIGER

FOSTER

CEDAR

WOODWAY

CR
IS

CHUPIK

HILL
MILES

VILLAGE CLUB

CA
RD

INA
L

JENNETTA

RIC
HA

RD

DE
BB

IE

LIVE OAK

HAW THOR N

ELM

REDBUD

SOUTHGATE

TALASEK

TOWN CENTER

CHESTNUT

AL
LW

RIG
HT

CYPRESS

SILVERADO

BRAZOS TOWN

SEQUOIA

PARKWAY
LO

NG
HO

RN

IDA

WILLOW

ELIZABETH

CITY HALL

SIDNEY

GRILLO

WILDBRIAR

MAIN

LA
W

TANGLELA N E

RAWSON

MYS T IC R IVER

ARCHER RANCH
DOGWOOD

MA RIL YN

LLOYD

SH
AN

E

AC
E

RICHWOODBAKER

HE
LE

N

HORACE MANN

WEHRING

BELMO NT

BRUMBELOW

MYST

ERIUM

KE
PL

ER
S

HABITAT

MAGNOLIA

AUGUST GREEN

SU
MM

ER
PA

RK

IN DUST
RIA

L

HELM SLEY EM
ILE

E

HOLLY

BERNIE

MEADOW

L

C CYPRESS1ST

3RD

LEAMAN

6TH

2ND

L

2ND

G

CEDAR

ALAMO

MILES

BROOKS

O

5TH
3RD

E

A

R

LOUISE

N

M

6TH

F

7TH

P

G

J

2ND

O
O

8TH

K

READING

JONES

BR YAN

B

3RD

7TH

K

4TH

LEAMAN

CYPRESS

@A1640

@A762

@A2218

@A723

@A2977

I

THOMPSON

HOUSTON
1ST

SOUTHWEST FWY

SOUTHWEST FWY

PL
EA

KVIL
LAGE

MINO
NIT

E

£¤90A

¬«36

@A2218

¬«36

1 Inch = 1,650 Feet

1:19,800

Sidewalk Proposal
for

Community Connectivity
City of Rosenberg, Texas

Scale:

or

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000
Feet

Sidewalks
Proposed Sidewalk
Existing Sidewalk
Sidewalk 2015

Basemap Features
Interstate
US Highway
State Highway
Farm-to-Market
Public Road
Thoroughfare Plan Road
Community Connectivity Areas
Brazos River
Rosenberg City Limits
Rosenberg ETJ

This product is for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable 
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of geographic features.

Created by: City of Rosenberg GIS - Paul M. Jones
Date Created: February 04, 2015
Original Size: 11" x 17"
K:\GIS\MAPS\Public_Works\2014\Sidewalks_EDC.mxd

Å

Û

N

S

EW

Reading Rd: est cost $33,982.50 (1,182 ft x $25 per linear ft construction costs x 1.15 for engineering costs)
Town Center Blvd: est cost $60,892.50 (2,118 ft x $25 per linear ft construction costs x 1.15 for engineering costs)



cynthias
Rectangle



 

 
PAGE 5 of 6 * ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION MEETING MINUTES * 

January 08, 2015 
 

 Director Peña stated the County is asking for $75,000 initial investment and RDC already budgeted $80,000 
for this project. 

 Director Peña asked if there is a problem with a certain crossing, how the contract would be amended. 
 Ms. Shelton stated it could not be changed in a day, but would go through the proper processes. 

 
Action:  Director Bailey moved and Director McConathy seconded a motion to authorize the expenditure of $75,000 for 
bus services in Rosenberg and submit the funding agreement/contract to RDC attorney for review. The motion carried 
by a unanimous vote of those present. 
 

9.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS CITY SIDEWALK PLAN, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY. 
Executive Summary: This item has been added to provide the Board an opportunity to discuss potential sidewalk 
projects in the City of Rosenberg, and to take action if necessary. 

 
Key discussion points: 

 Mr. Tanner explained the City has a sidewalk plan that governs where developers have to install sidewalks. 
The City recently adopted a sidewalk repair and maintenance program. The City does not have funding for 
installing new sidewalks if not installed by developers. RDC approached the City a few months ago with 
questions about installing sidewalks and make connections in the City. The City further looked at areas that 
would benefit commercial development in existing business areas and make those connections. Generally 
speaking, the cost is approximately $25 per linear foot or $130,000 per mile of sidewalk. 

 Director McConathy asked if this price includes just one side of the street, not both sides and Mr. Tanner 
confirmed the cost is for just one side of the street. 

 Director Peña asked if there is a preference for the north versus the south side of the street for planned 
sidewalk connections. Mr. Tanner stated installation is based on the plan the City has already made. 

 Director McConathy asked what the two different colors represented on the plan. Mr. Tanner stated the purple 
is sidewalks already funded.  

 Director Peña asked about Avenue G and Mr. Tanner reported Avenue G falls under our sidewalk repair 
program already funded. 

 Mr. Malik reminded the Board that they had discussed these areas, and the Board is interested in funding new 
sidewalks in commercial areas. He and Mr. Tanner had discussed possible areas. 

 Director McConathy asked Mr. Tanner to prepare a proposal regarding businesses coming in and bring the 
cost to that proposal back to the Board for funding sidewalks in commercial areas. 

 Mr. Tanner said the projects would be based on a possible funding amount. 
 Vice President Scopel asked Mr. Tanner to mark those individual areas with a cost and to bring that plan back 

when President Knesek is able to attend the Board meeting. 
 
No action was taken. 
 

10.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS OLD RICHMOND ROAD AND JENNETTA STREET RECONSTRUCTION, AND TAKE 
ACTION AS NECESSARY. 
Executive Summary: This item was added by RDC Director Jimmie Peña for consideration of RDC funding for the 
reconstruction of Old Richmond Road. The project was included in the City of Rosenberg FY2014 Capital Improvement 
Project list. The FY2014 Capital Improvement Project list was approved by City Council on September 17, 2013. On 
October 15, 2013, City Council approved Resolution No. R-1705, which approved the reconstruction of Old Richmond 
Road and Jennetta Street, including necessary drainage improvements with the participation of Fort Bend County 
Road and Bridge. 
 
Key discussion points: 

 City Manager Gracia briefed the Board that in 2014 City Council approved $500,000 for improvements. To 
date, the City has spent $143,000 on an engineering study and also completed some drainage work. The City 
will need an alternative route to get people from point A to point B. It can and will be a major corridor for 
people driving through Rosenberg and brings people into the Historic Downtown District. 

 Director Bailey pointed out as she was reading through minutes from previous City Council meetings, the 
question was asked if there was funding for this road, and the answer was always yes. 

 Director Peña stated the $500,000 was funded for the engineering study only. The City used the money to 
repair the road.  

 Director McConathy asked if the engineering study addresses the long term drainage issues. 
 Director Bailey stated it seems like this is a City or a bond issue, not an RDC funding issue. 
 Director Bailey asked if the $500,000 budgeted will go for the engineering study.  
 Mr. Gracia reported $143,000 was for the engineering study, some of the funds were spent on drainage work 

that was needed, and in order to complete the project the City needs $1,500,000. 
 Vice President Scopel asked about the funding possibility for RDC for this project. Ms. Vasut said at this time, 

RDC would not have to go into additional debt to fund this project. The entire project was going to be a part of 
the bond election, but there was no bond election. The City does not have the $1,500,000 at this time for this 
project, and in order to move the project more quickly, it was brought to RDC to request funding.  

 Mr. Malik pointed out with the Paragon project and the $4,750,000 with completion of that, RDC has $100,000 

cynthias
Rectangle



 

 
PAGE 2 of 4 * ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION MEETING MINUTES * 

February 12, 2015 
*** DRAFT *** 

Budget item titles. 
 President Knesek asked about the City charging RDC for professional services in the amount of $2,600 for the 

Business Park Development. Ms. Vasut explained the City is charging RDC actual costs for professional services and 
is not charging RDC 5% as has been charged previously. She also confirmed that professional services were not 
included in the total cost of the project. 

 President Knesek asked about the reduction of General Funds in the third quarter. Ms. Vasut replied that the RDC 
funded $1.7 million for the City to fund the Rosenberg Business Park project. 

 President Knesek also pointed out the low interest rate on RDC funds in Texpool. Ms. Vasut reported that Texpool is 
flexible about moving funds in and out of that account. 
 

Action: Director McConathy moved and Director Scopel seconded a motion to approve the Financial Reports for the 
period ending January 31, 2015, and the quarterly Investment Report for the period ending December 31, 2014, as 
presented. The motion passed by a unanimous vote. 
 

1.  (This item was taken out of order after Item No. 6) 
REVIEW AND DISCUSS CITY SIDEWALK PLAN, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY.  

Executive Summary:  This agenda item was requested by the RDC Board at the January RDC Meeting. The RDC Board 
requested that staff update the map to provide anticipated cost figures of each proposed sidewalk segment. The RDC does not 
have funds budgeted for the sidewalk project in the Fiscal Year 15 Budget.   

Key discussion points: 
 Mr. Tanner reported on the dollar amounts for the segments of sidewalk that could benefit commercial 

development and major commercial centers. 
Questions/Answers: 

 President Knesek inquired about specific areas highlighted and if funds for sidewalks had been included in the 
Fiscal Year 2015 Budget. 

 Mr. Malik confirmed no funds were budgeted for sidewalks in Fiscal Year 2015. 
 President Knesek stated that he appreciates the work completed on sidewalk project and indicated sidewalk 

project would be discussed in the RDC’s Fiscal Year 2016 Budget process. 
 Mr. Tanner stated that he would calculate those specific areas for commercial development. 
 Director McConathy suggested a focus on the older Rosenberg area sidewalks because new development is 

required to provide sidewalks. 
 Director Barta pointed out there are children walking to schools that do not have sidewalks. 
 Mr. Tanner replied that he would look at the City’s plan for sidewalks in the areas that include schools. 

 
No action was taken. 
 

2.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON INSTALLING TREE GRATES IN DOWNTOWN ROSENBERG. 
 
Executive Summary: This item has been requested by Darren McCarthy, Rosenberg Parks and Recreation Director, as an 
opportunity for the Rosenberg Development Corporation to partner with the City of Rosenberg in installing tree grates in 
Downtown Rosenberg and to take action as necessary. A local company, Kelly’s Welding, could construct the grates at a cost 
of $270.00 each. Installation is approximately $300.00 each for a total cost to complete the project at $8,000.00. The RDC 
Projects Fund currently has $15,888 remaining dollars in the FY 2014 Park Improvements Line Item. 
 
Key discussion points: 

 Mr. McCarthy explained the placement of tree grates in downtown Rosenberg. He also reported the rose 
bushes will be replaced with the type of trees that are planted in that area. He added that ADA requires a curb 
around the trees for sight impaired citizens.  

Questions/Answers: 
 President Knesek asked if the City would partner with RDC for this project. The $8,000 could be funded by 

RDC and the City each funding $4,000. 
 Mr. McCarthy reported there was $15,888 remaining for this project in the Fiscal Year 2014 Budget. 
 Director Pena agreed the City could partner with this project. 
 Director McConathy asked about the types of trees being planted and if the root system be deep enough.  Mr. 

McCarthy affirmed the types of trees have a deep root system.  
 

Action: Director McConathy moved and Director Barta seconded a motion to approve funding in the amount of $4,000 
for the purchase of seven (7) tree grates, half the recommended number, from Kelly’s Welding Service to be placed in 
Downtown Rosenberg. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

3.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. RDC-91, A RESOLUTION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2014-15 ANNUAL 
BUDGET IN THE AMOUNT OF $260,000 FOR IMPROVEMENTS TO THE ROSENBERG BUSINESS PARK.  
 
Executive Summary:  Previously the RDC approved a development agreement with Rosenberg Business Park, Ltd., 

cynthias
Rectangle



    
  COMMUNICATION FORM 
 
                   March 12, 2015 
 
ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

10 Options for Economic Development Staff Office Space 

ITEM/MOTION 

Review and discuss long term options for Economic Development office space, and direct staff as 
necessary. 

APPROVAL SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

     
SUBMITTED BY : 
 

 
 
Randall Malik 
RDC Executive Director 
 
 

 
1) None 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This item was requested by Bill Knesek, RDC Board President, to discuss future Economic Development 
office space. 

  
 
 
 



    
  COMMUNICATION FORM 
 
                   March 12, 2015 
 
ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

11 Resolution No. RDC-93 – Support for H.B. 658 for Texas State Technical 
College 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. RDC-93, a Resolution of the Board of Directors of the 
Rosenberg Development Corporation, in support of Texas House Bill No. 658 relating to the creation of 
a campus of the Texas State Technical College System in Fort Bend County.  

APPROVAL SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

     
SUBMITTED BY : 
 

 
 
Randall Malik 
Economic Development Director 

 
1) Resolution No. RDC-93 – Support 

for H.B. 658 for Texas State 
Technical College 

2) Texas House Bill No. 658 – Filed by 
Representative John Zerwas 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Representative John Zerwas of Texas House District 28 has filed Texas House Bill No. 658 relating to the 
creation of a campus of the Texas State Technical College (TSTC) in Fort Bend County. TSTC is working 
with the George and Henderson-Wessendorff Foundations on building a new TSTC Fort Bend Campus. 
 

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. RDC-93 as presented. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. RDC-93 
 
 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE ROSENBERG 
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, IN SUPPORT OF TEXAS HOUSE BILL NO. 658 
RELATING TO THE CREATION OF A CAMPUS OF THE TEXAS STATE TECHNICAL 
COLLEGE SYSTEM IN FORT BEND COUNTY. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Rosenberg Development Corporation (RDC), an economic development 
corporation organized pursuant to Section 4B of the Development Corporation Act of 1979, as amended, 
has established policies to adopt such reasonable projects, as are permitted by law, to include land and 
infrastructure for primary job training facilities for use by institutions of higher education; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the expansion of the Fort Bend Texas State Technical College will have a positive 
impact on the local and regional economy; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the Rosenberg Development Corporation has adopted numerous Strategic Plans 
identifying expanded technical training as a top priority; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the Rosenberg Development Corporation desires to partner with Texas State 
Technical College and affiliated organizations on a Texas State Technical College campus to be located 
in Fort Bend County. 
  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION: 

Section 1. That the Rosenberg Development Corporation supports House Bill 658 for the 
creation of an expanded Texas State Technical College located in Fort Bend County.  

 
 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, and RESOLVED this ______ day of ________________ 2015. 

 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
___________________________   ________________________________  
         
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Bill Knesek, President 
 



By:AAZerwas H.B.ANo.A658

A BILL TO BE ENTITLED

AN ACT

relating to the creation of a campus of the Texas State Technical

College System in Fort Bend County.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS:

SECTIONA1.AASection 135.02(a), Education Code, is amended to

read as follows:

(a)AAThe Texas State Technical College System is composed of:

(1)AAa system office located in the city of Waco in

McLennan County;

(2)AAa campus located in the city of Harlingen in

Cameron County;

(3)AAa campus serving West Texas that operates as a

collective unit of strategically positioned permanent locations in

the city of Sweetwater in Nolan County, the city of Abilene in

Taylor County, the city of Brownwood in Brown County, and the city

of Breckenridge in Stephens County;

(4)AAa campus located in the city of Marshall in

Harrison County;

(5)AAa campus located in the city of Waco in McLennan

County;

(6)AAa campus located in the city of Richmond in Fort

Bend County;

(7)AAan extension center located in Ellis County; and

(8)A[(7)]AAcampuses assigned to the system from time to

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

84R1667 JSL-F 1

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=ED&Value=135.02&Date=1/12/2015


time by specific legislative Act.

SECTIONA2.AASection 135.04(b), Education Code, is amended to

read as follows:

(b)AABefore any program may be offered by a campus or

extension center within the tax district of a public junior college

that is operating a vocational and technical program, it must be

established that the public junior college is not capable of

offering or is unable to offer the program.AAAfter it is

established that a need for the program exists and that the program

is not locally available, the campus or extension center may offer

the program, provided approval is secured from the coordinating

board. Approval of technical-vocational programs under this

section does not apply to Brown, McLennan, Cameron, Fort Bend, and

Potter counties.

SECTIONA3.AAThis Act takes effect immediately if it receives

a vote of two-thirds of all the members elected to each house, as

provided by Section 39, Article III, Texas Constitution. If this

Act does not receive the vote necessary for immediate effect, this

Act takes effect September 1, 2015.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

H.B.ANo.A658

2

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=ED&Value=135.04&Date=1/12/2015
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=CN&Value=3.39&Date=1/12/2015


    
  COMMUNICATION FORM 
 
                   March 12, 2015 
 
ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

12 Future Agenda Items 

ITEM/MOTION 

Review and discuss requests for future agenda items, and take action as necessary. 

APPROVAL SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

     
SUBMITTED BY : 
 

 
 
Randall Malik 
Economic Development Director 
 

 
1) None 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This item provides the RDC Board the opportunity to request future agenda items. 

  
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

 
 

ITEM 13 
 

Announcements. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 14 
 

Adjournment. 
 


	Rosenberg Development Corporation Meeting Agenda - 03-12-15.pdf
	A - Minutes
	Rosenberg Development Corporation Meeting Minutes - 02-12-15

	B - Rosenberg Development Corporation Financial Report
	RDC Financial Report - February 2015

	C - Resolution No. RDC-92 - Amending TexPool Authorized Representatives
	Resolution No. RDC-92

	1 - Hold Executive Session
	2 - Adjourn Executive Session
	3 - Fort Bend Transit Contract Agreement
	Agreement - Transit Services Rosenberg DC v2
	RDC Meeting Minute Excerpt - 01-08-15

	4 - Texas Open Meeting Act
	TML Texas Government Code 551.041 Handout

	5 - RDC Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
	RDC Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

	6 - City Newsletter Re-work Item Form
	7 - Infrastructure Branding Item Form
	8 - Old Richmond Road and Jennetta Street Reconstruction
	2013 Economic Development Handbook Excerpt
	Resolution No. R1898 - 01-20-15
	Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 1-20-15
	RDC Meeting Minute Excerpt - 01-08-15

	9 - City of Rosenberg Sidewalk Plan Update
	Sidewalk Proposal for Community Connectivity including costs
	2013 Economic Development Handbook Excerpt
	RDC 01-08-15 Meeting Minute Excerpt
	RDC 02-12-15 Draft Meeting Minute Excerpt

	10 - Economic Development Office Move
	11 - Resolution No. RDC-93 - Support for H.B. 658 for Texas State Technical College
	Resolution No. RDC - 93 - Support for H.B. for Texas State Technical College
	Texas House Bill No. 658

	12 - Future Agenda
	13 - Announcements
	14 - Adjournment



